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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Your Excellencies, The Chairman and Members of the Board of Governors
The Islamic Corporation for the Insurance of Investment and Export Credit
Jeddah, Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of The Islamic Corporation for the Insurance of Investment and
Export Credit (“the Corporation”), which comprise the statement of financial position as of December 31,
2024 (30 Jumada-Il 1446H), and the statement of profit or loss, statement of other comprehensive income,
statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
financial statements, including material accounting policies and supplementary financial information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Corporation as of December 31, 2024 and its financial performance, and its cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (‘IFRSs’).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (‘ISAs’). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Corporation in accordance
with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ International Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (including International Independence Standards) (‘lESBA Code’), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information included in the Corporation’s 2024 Annual Report

Other information consists of the information included in the Corporation’s 2024 annual report, other than
the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Board of Directors are responsible for the
other information. The Corporation’s annual report is expected to be made available to us after the date
of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

When we read the other information, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)

Your Excellencies, The Chairman and Members of the Board of Governors
The Islamic Corporation for the Insurance of Investment and Export Credit
Jeddah, Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with the IFRSs, and the Corporation’s Articles of Agreement and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Corporation’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Corporation or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance i.e. Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Corporation’s
financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Corporation’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude onthe appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Corporation’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Corporation to cease to
continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)

Your Excellencies, The Chairman and Members of the Board of Governors
The Islamic Corporation for the Insurance of Investment and Export Credit
Jeddah, Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

Deloitte and Touche & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Certified Public Accountant
License No. 378

12 Shawwal 1446
April 10, 2025



THE ISLAMIC CORPORATION FOR THE INSURANCE OF INVESTMENT AND EXPORT CREDIT

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2024 (30 JUMAD AL THANI 1446H)

(Expressed in thousands of Islamic Dinars unless otherwise stated)

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Investments held at amortized cost
Investments held at fair value

Reinsurance contract assets

Advances, prepaid expenses and other assets
Due from related parties

Property and equipment

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Equity

Share capital

General reserve

Fair value reserve

Foreign exchange reserve of shareholders’ fund

Accumulated deficit in policyholders’ fund
Foreign exchange reserve of policyholders’ fund
Actuarial losses on employee benefits liabilities

Total equity

Liabilities

Insurance contract liabilities

Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Due to related parties

Employee benefits liabilities

Total liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

December 31,

December 31,

Notes 2024 2023
5 38,181 21,800
6 311,244 251,313
7 14,826 17,677

8.2 101,895 81,470
9 5,692 5,330
10 193 199
11 1,952 1,795
473,983 379,584
14 147,629 147,567
15 96,548 89,694

(966) (1,055)
12,116 4,995
255,327 241,201

(13,925) (25,796)

(1,837) (1,085)

3,631 (792)

(12,131) (27,673)
243,196 213,528
8.1 212,113 149,907
12 16,175 10,022
10 824 514
13 1,675 5,613
230,787 166,056
473,983 379,584

The accompanying notes 1 to 20 and supplementary financial information

form an integral part of these financial statements
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THE ISLAMIC CORPORATION FOR THE INSURANCE OF INVESTMENT AND EXPORT CREDIT

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 (30 JUMAD AL THANI 1446H)
(Expressed in thousands of Islamic Dinars unless otherwise stated)

Notes 2024 2023
Insurance revenue 8.1 78,270 57,064
Insurance service expenses 8.1 (43,466) (9,629)
Net expenses from reinsurance contracts held 8.2 (22,754) (36,131)
Insurance service result 12,050 11,304
Investment income on investment at amortised cost 7 13,312 11,560
Investment income on investment at fair value 7 673 634
(Allowance for)/ reversal of expected credit losses 6.4 (1,270) 164
Net investment income 12,715 12,358
Finance income/(expenses) from insurance contracts issued 8.1 4,902 (2,378)
Finance (expenses)/income from reinsurance contracts held 8.2 (2,483) 1,357
Net insurance finance income / (expenses) 2,419 (1,021)
Net insurance and investment result 27,184 22,641
Investment management fees 10 (432) (612)
Other operating expenses (4,957) (5,218)
(loss) / income on foreign exchange translation (3,070) 1,113
NET CORPORATE GAIN 18,725 17,924

The accompanying notes 1 to 20 and supplementary financial information
form an integral part of these financial statements
-5-



THE ISLAMIC CORPORATION FOR THE INSURANCE OF INVESTMENT AND EXPORT CREDIT

STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 (30 JUMAD AL THANI 1446H)
(Expressed in thousands of Islamic Dinars unless otherwise stated)

NET CORPORATE GAIN

Other comprehensive income to be reclassified to statement
of profit or loss in subsequent periods:

Net changes in fair value of investments held at FVOCI — debt
instruments

Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to
statement of profit or loss in subsequent periods:

Remeasurement (loss) / gain on employee benefits liabilities
related to policyholders

Net changes in fair value of investments held at FVOCI — equity
instruments

Changes in foreign exchange reserves relating to:

Shareholders’ funds
Policyholders’ funds

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

2024 2023
18,725 17,924
109 244
4,423 (625)
(20) 72
7,121 (1,939)
(752) 210
29,606 15,886

The accompanying notes 1 to 20 and supplementary financial information

form an integral part of these financial statements
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THE ISLAMIC CORPORATION FOR THE INSURANCE OF INVESTMENT AND EXPORT CREDIT

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 (30 JUMAD AL THANI 1446H)
(Expressed in thousands of Islamic Dinars unless otherwise stated)

Balance as of January 1,
2023
Subscriptions received

Net underwriting gain

Net investment gain

Other comprehensive (loss)
/ income for the year

Reclassification

Balance as of December 31,
2023

Subscriptions received

Net underwriting gain

Net investment gain

Other comprehensive (loss)
/ income for the year

Balance as of December 31,
2024

Foreign Foreign Actuarial

exchange Total equity Accumulated exchange loss on Total equity

reserve of for deficit in reserve of employee for
Share General Fairvalue shareholder Shareholder policyholders’ policyholder benefits  Policyholder Total
capital reserves reserve s’ fund s’ fund fund s’ fund liabilities s’ fund Equity
147,442 81,736 (1,371) 6,934 234,741 (35,762) (1,295) (167) (37,224) 197,517
125 - - - 125 - - - - 125
- - - - - 9,966 - - 9,966 9,966
- 7,958 - - 7,958 - - - - 7,958

- - 316 (1,939) (1,623) - 210 (625) (415) (2,038))

- 7,958 316 (1,939) 6,335 9,966 210 (625) 9,551 15,886
147,567 89,694 (1,055) 4,995 241,201 (25,796) ) (1,085) (792) (27,673) 213,528
62 - - - 62 - - - - 62
- - - - - 11,871 - - 11,871 11,871
- 6,854 - - 6,854 - - - - 6,854
- - 89 7,121 7,210 - (752) 4,423 3,671 10,881
- 6,854 89 7,121 14,064 11,871 (752) 4,423 15,542 29,606
147,629 96,548 (966) 12,116 255,327 (13,925) (1,837) 3,631 (12,131) 243,196

The accompanying notes 1 to 20 and supplementary financial information
form an integral part of these financial statements
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THE ISLAMIC CORPORATION FOR THE INSURANCE OF INVESTMENT AND EXPORT CREDIT

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 (30 JUMAD AL THANI 1446H)
(Expressed in thousands of Islamic Dinars unless otherwise stated)

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Corporate Gain for the year

Adjustments for:

Depreciation

Gain on disposal of property and equipment

Cost of employee benefits liability

Investment income on investment at amortised cost

Investment income on investment at fair value

Allowance for / (reversal of) expected credit losses on financial assets

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Reinsurance contract assets

Advances, prepaid expenses and other assets

Due from related parties

Insurance contract liabilities

Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Due to related parties

Net foreign currency translation adjustment on assets and liabilities in
operating assets and liabilities

Cash generated from operations
Employer contribution

Net cash from operating activities
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Investment carried at amortized cost

Additions in investment carried at fair value

Proceeds from sale of Investment carried at fair value
Total investment income received

Purchase of property and equipment-net

Sales proceeds of property and equipment-net

Net cash used in investing activities

FINANCING ACTIVITY

Share subscriptions received

Net cash from financing activity

INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE YEAR
NON-CASH TRANSACTION

Fair value adjustment on investment carried at fair value
Share capital adjustments

The accompanying notes 1 to 20 and supplementary financial information

December 31,

December 31,

2024 2023
18,725 17,924
79 85
- (41)
1,629 1,557
(13,312) (11,560)
(673) (634)
1,270 (164 )
7,718 7,167
(20,425) (7,919)
(362) 45
6 237
62,206 13,894
6,153 355
310 (638)
5,126 (1,636)
60,732 11,505
(1,214) (1,271)
59,518 10,234
(61,201) (91,060)
14,866 (699)
(757) 8,007
4,129 11,794
(236) (283)
- 49
(43,199) (72,192)
62 125
62 125
16,381 (61,833)
21,800 83,633
38,181 21,800
89 316

form an integral part of these financial statements
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THE ISLAMIC CORPORATION FOR THE INSURANCE OF INVESTMENT AND EXPORT CREDIT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 (30 JUMAD AL THANI 1446H)
(Expressed in thousands of Islamic Dinars unless otherwise stated)

1.

ACTIVITIES

The Islamic Corporation for the Insurance of Investment and Export Credit (“the Corporation”) was
formed as an autonomous affiliate of Islamic Development Bank (“IsDB” or the “Bank”) with full juristic
personality under the terms of its Articles of Agreement, signed by IsDB and Member countries (refer
note 1(a)). The principal office of the Corporation is in Jeddah, Saudi Arabia.

The objectives of the Corporation are to expand the scope of trade transactions and flow of investments
among member countries by providing export credit Islamic insurance and Islamic reinsurance; as well
as Islamic insurance and Islamic reinsurance of investments in accordance with Shari’ah Principles. The
Corporation carries out its activities in accordance with its Articles of Agreement, Operating Regulations
and the principles of Islamic Shari’ah as supervised by the IsDB Group Shari’ah Board whose functions
are set out in Note 2.

As a supranational institution, the Corporation is not subject to any national regulation, is neither
supervised by any external regulatory authority and is not subject to any taxes or tariffs.

The Articles of Agreement of the Corporation came into effect on August 2"¢, 1994 (corresponding to 24
Safar 1415H) and the Corporation commenced operations on July 15,1995 (corresponding to 4 Safar
1416H). In accordance with the Articles of Agreement, the Corporation is required to maintain and
administer two separate funds:

i. A Policyholders’ fund
ii. A Shareholders’ fund

As an Islamic Insurance entity, the Corporation manages the Policyholders’ fund according to the Islamic
model of Wakala, whereby the Corporation acts as an agent for managing the technical insurance
accounts on behalf of the Policyholders’ and invests income from insurance operations according to
Mudaraba model. No wakala fee is charged to the Policyholders’ fund by the Shareholders’ fund.

All expenses to run the Islamic insurance business are charged to the Policyholders’ fund at cost, without
any administration fee levied by the Shareholders’ fund. The Shareholders’ fund is not entitled to a share
in any surplus accruing to the Policyholders’ fund; any deficit in the Policyholders’ fund is covered from
the Shareholders’ fund capital by way of a gard (loan) without any cost or charges. The gard (loan) is
akin to a revolving current account to be repaid from cash sweeps of cash surplus accruing to the
Policyholders’ fund on a periodic basis.

In accordance with clause 13(3) of the Articles of Agreement, the net deficit in the Policyholders’ fund
should be covered by a gard from the Shareholders’ fund. The gard is recoverable from future cash
surplus accruing to the Policyholders’ fund. The net deficit is interpreted as the shortfall of assets to
meet any liabilities of the Policyholders’ fund.

The accompanying financial statements are presented in Islamic Dinars (ID). The value of one Islamic
Dinar, which is equivalent to one Special Drawing Right (SDR) of the International Monetary Fund, was
equal to USD 1.30413 as of December 31, 2024 (2023: USD 1.34167).



THE ISLAMIC CORPORATION FOR THE INSURANCE OF INVESTMENT AND EXPORT CREDIT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 (30 JUMAD AL THANI 1446H)
(Expressed in thousands of Islamic Dinars unless otherwise stated)

a) The following are the Shareholders of the Corporation as of December 31, 2024 (2023: 50
shareholders):

No. Name of Shareholder No. Name of Shareholder

1 IsDB -Special Account Resources Waqf Fund 27 Malaysia

2 Albania 28 Maldives

3 Algeria 29 Mali

4 Azerbaijan 30 Mauritania

5 Bahrain 31 Morocco

6 Bangladesh 32 Mozambique

7 Benin 33 Niger

8 Brunei 34 Nigeria

9 Burkina Faso 35 Oman

10 Cameroon 36 Pakistan

11 Chad 37 Palestine

12 Comoros 38 Qatar

13 Cote d’lvoire 39 Saudi Arabia

14 Djibouti 40 Senegal

15 Egypt 41 Sudan

16 Gabon 42 Suriname

17 Gambia 43 Syria

18 Guinea 44 Tunisia

19 Indonesia 45 Turkey

20 Iran 46 Turkmenistan

21 Iraq 47 Togo

22 Jordan 48 Uganda

23 Kazakhstan 49 United Arab Emirates

24 Kuwait 50 Uzbekistan

25 Lebanon 51 Yemen

26 Libya

IsDB GROUP SHARI’AH BOARD

The Corporation's business activities are subject to the supervision of the IsDB Group Shari'ah Board
consisting of members appointed by the Chairman of the IsDB Group in consultation with the Board of
Executive Directors of IsDB. The IsDB Group’s Shari'ah Board was established pursuant to a Resolution
of the Board of Executive Directors of IsDB. The members of the Board are appointed for 3 years and
may be reappointed.

The functions of the Board include the following:

To consider transactions and products introduced for the first time by the Corporation and rule on
their conformity with principles of Shari’ah, and to lay down principles for drafting of related
contracts and other documents.

. Togive its opinion on Shari’ah alternatives to conventional products which the Corporation intends

to use, and to lay down principles for drafting of related contracts and other documents, and to
contribute to its development with a view to enhancing the Corporation’s experience in this
regard.

To respond to questions, enquiries and explications referred to it by the Board of Directors or
Management.

. To contribute to the Corporation’s program for enhancing awareness of its Staff Members of

Islamic Banking and to deepen their understanding of fundamental principles, rules and values
relative to Islamic financial transactions.

To submit an annual report to the Board of Directors showing the measure of the Corporation’s
commitment to principles of Shari’ah in light of the opinions and directions given and transactions
reviewed.

-10 -



THE ISLAMIC CORPORATION FOR THE INSURANCE OF INVESTMENT AND EXPORT CREDIT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 (30 JUMAD AL THANI 1446H)
(Expressed in thousands of Islamic Dinars unless otherwise stated)

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
a. Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and the
Corporation’s Articles of Agreement.

In preparing the Corporations financial statements in accordance with IFRS, the balances and
transactions of the insurance operations are amalgamated and combined with those of the
shareholders' operations. Interoperation balances and transactions, if any, are eliminated in full. The
results of operations of policyholders are presented as a separate component within equity in the
statement of financial position.

b. Basis of preparation and reporting and functional currency

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention using accrual basis of
accounting, except for the following:

Items Measurement bases

Present value of the defined benefit obligation,
using actuarial present value calculations based

Employee Benefit liabilities on projected unit credit method as explained in
note 13.

Investment classified as fair value through other
comprehensive income’ (FVOCI) and fair value
through profit and loss (FVTPL) Fair value

Presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in Islamic Dinars which is the presentation currency of the
Corporation.

The Corporation adopted the United States Dollars as its functional currency and the results and financial
position are translated from the functional currency into the presentation currency as follows:

i. Monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the closing rate at year end;

ii. Non-monetary assets and equity items are translated at historical rates at each transaction date;

iii. Income and expenses are translated at average rates during the year; and

iv. All resulting exchange differences are recognized in other comprehensive income and foreign
exchange reserve in the equity section of the statement of financial position.

¢. Summary of material accounting policy information

The accounting policies are consistent with those used in the previous year, except for new standards
and interpretations disclosed in note 4. The significant accounting policies adopted are as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of Bank balances and Commodity Murabaha placements having an
original maturity of three months or less at the date of acquisition.

-11 -



THE ISLAMIC CORPORATION FOR THE INSURANCE OF INVESTMENT AND EXPORT CREDIT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 (30 JUMAD AL THANI 1446H)
(Expressed in thousands of Islamic Dinars unless otherwise stated)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Corporation’s statement of financial
position when the Corporation becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets include cash and cash equivalent, investments at amortised cost, investments at fair
value and due from related parties. Financial liabilities include due to related parties.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value, except for trade receivables
that do not have a significant financing component which are measured at transaction price.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

All recognised financial assets are measured subsequently in their entirety at either amortised cost or
fair value, depending on the classification of the financial assets.

Classification of financial assets

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are measured subsequently at amortised cost:
e the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets
in order to collect contractual cash flows; and
e the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and profit (‘SPPP’) on the principal amount outstanding.

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are measured subsequently at fair value through
other comprehensive income (FVTOCI):
e the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets; and
e the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and profit on the principal amount outstanding.

By default, all other financial assets are measured subsequently at fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL).
Despite the foregoing, the Corporation may make the following irrevocable election / designation at
initial recognition of a financial asset:
e the Corporation may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value of an
equity investment in other comprehensive income if certain criteria are met; and
e the Corporation may irrevocably designate a debt investment that meets the amortised cost
or FVTOCI criteria as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch.

-12 -



THE ISLAMIC CORPORATION FOR THE INSURANCE OF INVESTMENT AND EXPORT CREDIT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 (30 JUMAD AL THANI 1446H)
(Expressed in thousands of Islamic Dinars unless otherwise stated)

Amortised cost and effective profit method

The effective profit method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of
allocating profit over the relevant period.

For financial assets other than purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets (i.e. assets that
are credit-impaired on initial recognition), the effective profit rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective profit rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) excluding
expected credit losses, through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the gross carrying amount of the debt instrument on initial recognition. For
purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets, a credit-adjusted effective profit rate is
calculated by discounting the estimated future cash flows, including expected credit losses, to the
amortised cost of the debt instrument on initial recognition.

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at which the financial asset is measured at initial
recognition minus the principal repayments, plus the cumulative amortisation using the effective
profit method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount, adjusted for
any loss allowance. The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is the amortised cost of a financial
asset before adjusting for any loss allowance.

Profit is recognised using the effective profit method for debt instruments measured subsequently at
amortised cost and at FVTOCI. For financial assets other than purchased or originated credit-impaired
financial assets, profit is calculated by applying the effective profit rate to the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset, except for financial assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired. For
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired, profit is recognised by applying the
effective profit rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. If, in subsequent reporting periods,
the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that the financial asset is no
longer credit-impaired, profit is recognised by applying the effective profit rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset.

For purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets, the Corporation recognises profit by
applying the credit-adjusted effective profit rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset from
initial recognition. The calculation does not revert to the gross basis even if the credit risk of the
financial asset subsequently improves so that the financial asset is no longer credit impaired.

Income is recognised in profit or loss and is included in the " Investment income on investment at
amortised cost" and “Investment income on investment at fair value” line item.

Debt instruments classified as at FVTOCI

A Sukuk held by the Corporation is classified as at FVTOCI. Fair value is determined in the manner
described in note 16. The Sukuk is initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs. Subsequently,
changes in the carrying amount of the Sukuk as a result of foreign exchange gains and losses,
impairment gains or losses, and profit calculated using the effective profit method are recognised in
profit or loss. The amounts that are recognised in profit or loss are the same as the amounts that
would have been recognised in profit or loss if the Sukuk had been measured at amortised cost. All
other changes in the carrying amount of Sukuk is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated under the heading of fair value reserve. When the Sukuk is derecognised, the cumulative
gains or losses previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss.

-13 -



THE ISLAMIC CORPORATION FOR THE INSURANCE OF INVESTMENT AND EXPORT CREDIT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 (30 JUMAD AL THANI 1446H)
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Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

On initial recognition, the Corporation may make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-
instrument basis) to designate investments in equity instruments as at FVTOCI. Designation at FVTOCI
is not permitted if the equity investment is held for trading or if it is contingent consideration
recognised by an acquirer in a business combination.

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs.
Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the fair value reserve. The cumulative
gain or loss is not reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the equity investments, instead, it is
transferred to retained earnings.

Dividends on these investments in equity instruments are recognised in profit or loss in accordance
with IFRS 9, unless the dividends clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.
Dividends are included in the 'Investment income on investment at fair value’ line item in profit or
loss.

The Corporation designated all investments in equity instruments that are not held for trading as at
FVTOCI on initial recognition.

A financial asset is held for trading if either:
e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term; or
e oninitial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the group
manages together and has evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or
e itis a derivative (except for a derivative that is a financial guarantee contract or a designated
and effective hedging instrument).

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI are
measured at FVTPL. Specifically:

e Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the Corporation
designates an equity investment that is neither held for trading nor a contingent
consideration arising from a business combination as at FVTOCI on initial recognition.

o Debt instruments that do not meet the amortised cost criteria or the FVTOCI criteria are
classified as at FVTPL. In addition, debt instruments that meet either the amortised cost
criteria or the FVTOCI criteria may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if such
designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency
(so called ‘accounting mismatch’) that would arise from measuring assets or liabilities or
recognising the gains and losses on them on different bases. The Corporation has not
designated any debt instruments as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any fair
value gains or losses recognised in profit or loss to the extent they are not part of a designated hedging
relationship (the Corporation does not have any hedge relationship). The net gain or loss recognised
in profit or loss includes any dividend or profit earned on the financial asset and is included in the
‘Investment income on investment at fair value’ line item in profit or loss. Fair value is determined in
the manner described in note 16.

-14 -



THE ISLAMIC CORPORATION FOR THE INSURANCE OF INVESTMENT AND EXPORT CREDIT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 (30 JUMAD AL THANI 1446H)
(Expressed in thousands of Islamic Dinars unless otherwise stated)

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of
financial position only when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously. Income and expenses are not offset in the statement of income unless required or
permitted by any accounting standard or interpretation, as specifically disclosed in the accounting
policies of the Corporation. No offsetting has been made in these financial statements.

Foreign exchange gains and losses

The carrying amount of financial assets that are denominated in a foreign currency is determined in
that foreign currency and translated at the spot rate at the end of each reporting period. Specifically:

e for financial assets measured at amortised cost that are not part of a designated hedging
relationship, exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss in the ‘Income/(loss) on foreign
exchange translation’;

o for debt instruments measured at FVTOCI that are not part of a designated hedging relationship,
exchange differences on the amortised cost of the debt instrument are recognised in profit or loss
in the ‘Income/(loss) on foreign exchange translation’ line item. As the foreign currency element
recognised in profit or loss is the same as if it was measured at amortised cost, the residual foreign
currency element based on the translation of the carrying amount (at fair value) is recognised in
other comprehensive income in the fair value reserve;

e for financial assets measured at FVTPL that are not part of a designated hedging relationship,
exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss in the ‘Income/(loss) on foreign exchange
translation’ line item as part of the fair value gain or loss; and

e for equity instruments measured at FVTOCI, exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income in the fair value reserve.

Impairment of financial assets / Expected credit losses

Overview of Expected Credit Loss (“ECL”) principles

The ECL allowance is based on the credit losses expected to arise over the life of the asset (the lifetime
expected credit loss); unless there has been no significant increase in credit risk since origination, in
which case, the allowance is based on the 12 months’ expected credit loss. Lifetime expected credit
losses represent ECL that would result from all possible default events over the expected life of the
financial asset whereas 12 month expected credit losses are those life expected credit losses expected
to occur within 12 months of balance sheet date. Both lifetime ECLs and 12-month ECLs will be
calculated on an individual basis depending on the nature of the underlying portfolio of financial
instruments.

The Corporation recognizes loss allowances for ECL on the following financial instruments that are not
measured at fair value:
- Financial assets that are debt instruments

- Cash and cash equivalents and Murabaha investments

No impairment loss is recognized on equity instruments.

The Corporation measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECL, except for the following,

for which they are measured as 12-month ECL:

- debt instruments that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and

- other financial instruments on which credit risk has not increased significantly since their initial
recognition.

-15-



THE ISLAMIC CORPORATION FOR THE INSURANCE OF INVESTMENT AND EXPORT CREDIT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 (30 JUMAD AL THANI 1446H)
(Expressed in thousands of Islamic Dinars unless otherwise stated)

The Corporation considers debt securities to have low credit risk when their credit risk rating is
equivalent to the globally understood definition of 'investment grade'.

Staging of financial assets

The Corporation categorizes its investments portfolio classified as amortized cost and FVTOCI into
Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3 as described below:

Stage 1 — Performing financial assets for which there has been no significant deterioration in credit
quality since initial recognition;

Stage 2 — Underperforming financial assets for which there has been a significant deterioration in credit
quality since initial recognition, but which are not credit-impaired; and

Stage 3 — Non-performing financial assets for which there has been a significant deterioration in credit
quality since initial recognition and which have become credit-impaired.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Corporation compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument at
the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment, the Corporation considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable, including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort. Forward-looking information considered
includes the future prospects of the industries in which the Corporation’s debtors operate, obtained
from economic expert reports, financial analysts, governmental bodies, relevant think-tanks and other
similar organisations, as well as consideration of various external sources of actual and forecast
economic information that relate to the Corporation’s core operations.

In particular, the following information is taken into account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

e anactual or expected significant deterioration in the financial instrument’s external (if available)
or internal credit rating;

e significant deterioration in external market indicators of credit risk for a particular financial
instrument, e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread, the credit default swap prices for
the debtor, or the length of time or the extent to which the fair value of a financial asset has
been less than its amortised cost;

e existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating results of the debtor;

e significant increases in credit risk on other financial instruments of the same debtor; and

THE ISLAMIC CORPORATION FOR THE INSURANCE OF INVESTMENT AND EXPORT CREDIT
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Credit impaired financial asset

At each reporting date, the Corporation assesses whether financial assets carried at amortized cost are
credit impaired. A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

e significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

¢ a breach of contract such as a default or past due event (more than 90 days);

e it is becoming probable that the borrower or issuer will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganization; or

¢ the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

In assessing whether an investment in sovereign debt is credit-impaired, the Corporation considers the

following factors.

¢ The market’s assessment of creditworthiness as reflected in the bond yields.

¢ The rating agencies’ assessments of creditworthiness.

¢ The country’s ability to access the capital markets for new debt issuance.

¢ The probability of debt being restructured, resulting in holders suffering losses through voluntary or
mandatory debt forgiveness.

¢ The international support mechanisms in place to provide the necessary support as ‘lender of last
resort’ to that country, as well as the intention, reflected in public statements, of governments and
agencies to use those mechanisms. This includes an assessment of the depth of those mechanisms
and, irrespective of the political intent, whether there is the capacity to fulfil the required criteria.

Definition of default

In assessing whether an issuer is in default, the Corporation considers indicators that are:

e qualitative- e.g., breaches of covenant.

e gquantitative- e.g., overdue status and non-payment on another obligation of the same issuer to the
Corporation; and

¢ based on data developed internally and obtained from external sources.

Inputs into the assessment of whether a financial instrument is in default and their significance may
vary over time to reflect changes in circumstances.

ECL methodology and measurement

ECL is computed based on the parameters namely Probability of Default (PD), Loss Given Default (LGD)
and Exposure at Default (EAD) values. ECL is discounted by an appropriate rate to get the Present Value
of ECL.

For the investment portfolio, a generalized approach is used, where assets are classified under 3
different stages based on the SICR criteria: Stage 1, Stage 2, and Stage 3 where 12-month ECL is
computed for Stage 1 and lifetime ECL for Stage 2 and Stage 3. For other receivable portfolio, a
simplified approach is used, for which staging is not required, based on a lifetime ECL computation.

ECL is a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. It is measured as follows:

¢ financial assets that are not credit-impaired at the reporting date: as the present value of all cash

2023 shortfalls (i.e., the difference between the cash flows due to the entity in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Corporation expects to receive).

e financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting date: as the difference between the gross

2,019 carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows.
2,934 -17 -
377

3,311
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Probability of Default (‘PD’)

The probability of default is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon.

Loss Given Default (‘LGD’)

Loss given default inputs are determined by class of financial instrument based on historical experience
of loss and recovery rates for similar financial instruments and other relevant industry data.

Exposure at Default (‘EAD’)

The exposure at default is an estimate of the exposure at a future default date.

Forward looking estimate

While estimating the ECL, the Corporation reviews macro-economic developments occurring in the
economy and market it operates in. On a periodic basis, the Corporation analyzes the relationship
between key economic trends with the estimate of PD. The Corporation incorporates forward-looking
information into both its assessment of whether the credit risk of an instrument has increased
significantly since its initial recognition and its measurement of ECL. Based on reports from economic
experts and consideration of a variety of external actual and forecast information, the Corporation
formulates a ‘base case’ view of the future direction of relevant economic variables as well as a
representative range of other possible forecast scenarios. This process involves developing two or
more additional economic scenarios and considering the relative probabilities of each outcome.
External information includes economic data and forecasts published by governmental bodies and
monetary authorities in the Kingdom and selected private-sector and academic forecasters. The base
case represents a most-likely outcome and is aligned with information used by the Corporation for
other purposes such as strategic planning and budgeting. The other scenarios represent more
optimistic and more pessimistic outcomes. Periodically, the Corporation carries out stress testing of
more extreme shocks to calibrate its determination of these other representative scenarios.

Presentation of allowance for ECL in the statement of financial position

Loss allowances for ECL are presented in the statement of financial position as follows:

¢ financial assets measured at amortized cost: as a deduction from the gross carrying amount of the
assets.

¢ debt instruments measured at FVTOCI: no loss allowance is recognized in the statement of financial
position because the carrying amount of these assets is their fair value. However, the loss allowance
is disclosed and is recognized in the fair value reserve. No such allowance is recognized as of
December 31, 2024 and 2023.

Financial liabilities
Classification and derecognition of financial liabilities

The Corporation classifies its financial liabilities, other than financial guarantees if any, as measured at
amortized cost.

A liability is classified at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for trading, it is a derivative or it is designated
as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and
losses, including any cost on liability, are recognized in statement of profit or loss. The Corporation
derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or expire.
The Corporation has no financial liability recognized at FVTPL.
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IFRS 17 - Insurance and reinsurance contracts

IFRS 17 replaces IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts and is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2023, with early adoption permitted. IFRS 17 establishes principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of insurance contracts, reinsurance contracts and
investment contracts with direct participation features (“DPF”). The Corporation has applied the full
retrospective approach to each group of insurance contracts.

The Corporation issues insurance contracts that transfer insurance risk. Insurance contracts are those
contracts where the insurer accepts significant insurance risk from the policyholder by agreeing to
compensate the policyholder if a specified uncertain future event adversely affects the policyholder.
Cash flows from insurance contracts are split into Liability for Incurred Claims (“LIC”) and Liability for
Remaining Coverage (“LRC").

The Corporation issues the following types of contracts that are accounted for in accordance with
IFRS 17 Insurance Premium Allocation Approach (PAA). All the reinsurance contracts are also
accounted for under PAA.

e BMP Bank Master Policy

e (CSTP Comprehensive Short-Term policy

e DCIP Documentary Credit Insurance Policy

e FIPE Foreign Investment policy for Equity

e FIPF Foreign Investment policy for Financing

e FIPL Foreign Investment policy for Loan Guarantee
e GAP Global Alliance policy

e |IFRP Facultative Reinsurance policy

e IQTP Quota Treaty Policy

e STP Specific Transaction Policy

Products sold by the Corporation are classified as insurance contracts when the Corporation accepts
significant insurance risk from a policyholder by agreeing to compensate the policyholder if a specified
uncertain future event adversely affects the policyholder.

This assessment is made on a contract-by-contract basis at the contract issue date. In making this
assessment, the Corporation considers all its substantive rights and obligations, whether they arise
from contract, law or regulation.

The Corporation determines whether a contract contains significant insurance risk by assessing if an
insured event could cause the Corporation to pay to the policyholder additional amounts that are
significant in any single scenario with commercial substance even if the insured event is extremely
unlikely or the expected present value of the contingent cash flows is a small proportion of the
expected present value of the remaining cash flows from the insurance contract.

Level of aggregation

The Corporation identifies portfolios by aggregating insurance contracts that are subject to similar
risks and managed together. In grouping insurance contracts into portfolios, the Corporation
considers the similarity of risks rather than the specific labelling of product lines. The Corporation has
determined that all contracts within each product line, as defined for management purposes, have
similar risks. Therefore, when contracts are managed together, they represent a portfolio of
contracts.
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Each portfolio is subdivided into groups of contracts to which the recognition and measurement
requirements of IFRS 17 are applied.

At initial recognition, the Corporation segregates insurance contracts based on when they were
issued. A cohort contains all contracts that were issued within a 12-month period. Each cohort is then
further disaggregated into three groups of contracts:

- any contracts that are onerous on initial recognition

- any contracts that, on initial recognition, have no significant possibility of becoming onerous
subsequently; and

- any remaining contracts in the portfolio.

The reinsurance contracts are disaggregated into three group of contracts:

- those that on initial recognition have a net gain, if any;
- those that on initial recognition have no significant possibility of resulting in a net gain; and
- other remaining reinsurance contracts held in that portfolio.

Contracts within a portfolio that would fall into different groups only because law or regulation
specifically constrains the Corporation’s practical ability to set a different price or level of benefits for
policyholders with different characteristics are included in the same group.

The composition of groups established at initial recognition is not subsequently reassessed.

The Corporation determines that contracts are not onerous on initial recognition, unless there are
facts and circumstances indicating otherwise.

None of the insurance contracts groups recognized are onerous. Similarly, none of the reinsurance
contracts groups recognized are expected to have a net gain.

Recognition
The Corporation recognises groups of insurance contracts it issues from the earliest of the following:

- The beginning of the coverage period of the group of contracts;

- The date when the first payment from a policyholder in the group is due or when the first
payment is received if there is no due date; and

- For a group of onerous contracts, if facts and circumstances indicate that the group is onerous.
There are no onerous group of contracts as of December 31, 2024 and 2023.

The Corporation recognises only contracts issued within a one-year period meeting the recognition
criteria by the reporting date. Subject to this limit, a group of insurance contracts can remain open
after the end of the current reporting period. New contracts are included in the group when they
meet the recognition criteria in subsequent reporting periods until such time that all contracts
expected to be included within the group have been recognised.

The Corporation adds new contracts to the group in the reporting period in which that contract
meets one of the criteria set out above.
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The Corporation recognises a group of reinsurance contracts held it has entered into from the earlier
of the following:

- The beginning of the coverage period of the group of reinsurance contracts held. However, the
Corporation delays the recognition of a group of reinsurance contracts held that provide
proportionate coverage until the date any underlying insurance contract is initially recognised, if
that date is later than the beginning of the coverage period of the group of reinsurance contracts
held; and

- The date the Corporation recognises an onerous group of underlying insurance contracts if the
Corporation entered into the related reinsurance contract held in the group of reinsurance
contracts held at or before that date.

Measurement model

The Corporation applies the Premium Allocation Approach (PAA) to all the insurance contracts that it
issues and reinsurance contracts that it holds. The Corporation applies the PAA as the coverage period
of these contracts is one year or less. In case of contracts with more than one-year of coverage period,
the Corporation had carried out the PAA eligibility test (refer below section “Insurance Contracts —
initial measurement”) to confirm that PAA may be applied. When measuring liabilities for remaining
coverage, the PAA is broadly similar to the Corporation 's previous accounting treatment under IFRS 4.
However, when measuring liabilities for incurred claims, the Corporation now includes an explicit risk

adjustment for non-financial risk as well as provision for Incurred But Not Reported (IBNR) claims.

Contract boundary

The Corporation includes in the measurement of a group of insurance contracts all the future cash
flows within the boundary of each contract in the group. Cash flows are within the boundary of an
insurance contract if they arise from substantive rights and obligations that exist during the reporting
period in which the Corporation can compel the policyholder to pay the premiums, or in which the
Corporation has a substantive obligation to provide the policyholder with insurance contract services.
A substantive obligation to provide insurance contract services ends when:

- The Corporation has the practical ability to reassess the risks of the particular policyholder and, as a
result, can set a price or level of benefits that fully reflects those risks; or

- The Corporation has the practical ability to reassess the risks of the portfolio of insurance contracts
that contain the contract and, as a result, can set a price or level of benefits that fully reflects the risk
of that portfolio; and the pricing of the premiums up to the date when the risks are reassessed does
not take into account the risks that relate to periods after the reassessment date

Cash flows outside the insurance contracts boundary relate to future insurance contracts and are
recognised when those contracts meet the recognition criteria.

The carrying amount of a group of insurance and reinsurance contracts issued at the end of each
reporting period is the sum of:

a. the liability / asset for remaining coverage; and

b. the liability / asset for incurred claims, comprising the fulfillment cash flows (“FCF”) related to past
service allocated to the Corporation at the reporting date.

-21-



THE ISLAMIC CORPORATION FOR THE INSURANCE OF INVESTMENT AND EXPORT CREDIT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 (30 JUMAD AL THANI 1446H)
(Expressed in thousands of Islamic Dinars unless otherwise stated)

Liability for remaining coverage - Insurance Contracts — initial measurement

The Corporation applies the premium allocation approach (PAA) to all the insurance contracts that it
issues, as:

- The coverage period of each contract in the group is one year or less, including insurance contract
services arising from all premiums within the contract boundary; or

- For contracts longer than one year, the Corporation has modelled possible future scenarios and
reasonably expects that the measurement of the liability for remaining coverage for the group
containing those contracts under the PAA does not differ materially from the measurement that would
be produced applying the General Measurement Model ("GMM").

For a group of contracts that is not onerous at initial recognition, the Corporation measures the Liability
for Remaining Coverage (LRC) as:

- The premiums received in cash, if any, received at initial recognition,

- Minus any insurance acquisition cash flows at that date,

- plus or minus any amount arising from the derecognition at that date of the asset recognised for
insurance acquisition cash flows and any other asset or liability previously recognised for cash flows
related to the group of contracts

For all insurance contracts, there is no allowance for time value of money in the calculation of LRC. The
Corporation expects that the time between providing each part of the services and the related
premium due date is no more than a year or is considered as immaterial where over one year.

Premiums due to the Corporation for insurance contract services already provided in the period but
not yet received at the end of the reporting period are included in the LRC.

Asset for remaining coverage - Reinsurance contracts held — initial measurement

The Corporation measures its reinsurance assets for a group of reinsurance contracts that it holds on
the same basis as insurance contracts that it issues. However, they are adapted to reflect the features
of reinsurance contracts held that differ from insurance contracts issued, for example the generation
of expenses or reduction in expenses rather than revenue.

For reinsurance contracts longer than one year, the Corporation has modelled possible future
scenarios and reasonably expects that the measurement of the asset for remaining coverage for the
group containing those contracts under the PAA does not differ materially from the measurement that
would be produced applying the General Measurement Model ("GMM").

Liability for remaining coverage - Insurance contracts — subsequent measurement

The Corporation measures the carrying amount of the liability for remaining coverage at the end of

each reporting period as the liability for remaining coverage at the beginning of the period:

- Plus premiums received in the period,

- Minus insurance acquisition cash flows,

- Plus any amounts relating to the amortisation of the insurance acquisition cash flows recognised as
an expense in the reporting period for the group,

- Minus the amount recognised as insurance revenue for the services provided in the period, and

The Corporation estimates the liability for incurred claims as the fulfilment cash flows related to
incurred claims. The fulfiiment cash flows incorporate, in an unbiased way, all reasonable and
supportable information available without undue cost or effort about the amount, timing and
uncertainty of those future cash flows, they reflect current estimates from the perspective of the
Corporation and include an explicit adjustment for non-financial risk (the risk adjustment).

-22-



THE ISLAMIC CORPORATION FOR THE INSURANCE OF INVESTMENT AND EXPORT CREDIT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 (30 JUMAD AL THANI 1446H)
(Expressed in thousands of Islamic Dinars unless otherwise stated)

Asset for remaining coverage - Reinsurance contracts held — subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of reinsurance contracts held follows the same principles as those for
insurance contracts issued and has been adapted to reflect the specific features of reinsurance held.

Liability for Incurred Claims “LIC”

For contracts measured under the PAA, the LIC is measured similarly to the LIC's measurement under
the GMM. The Corporation estimates the liability for incurred claims and expenses as the fulfillment
cash flows related to incurred claims and expenses. The fulfillment cash flows are an explicit, unbiased,
and probability-weighted estimate of the present value of the future cash flows, within the contract
boundary of a group of contracts, that will arise as the entity fulfills its obligation under the insurance
contracts, including a risk adjustment for non-financial risk. The Corporation presents the entire
change in risk adjustment as part of insurance service results.

The Corporation establishes insurance claims liabilities to cover the estimated liability for the cash
flows associated with incurred losses as at of the statement of financial position date, including claims
incurred but not yet reported (“IBNR”) and loss adjustment expenses incurred with respect to
insurance contracts underwritten and reinsurance contracts placed by the Corporation. The ultimate
cost of claims liabilities is estimated by using generally accepted standard actuarial techniques.

The main assumption underlying these techniques is that the Corporation’s past claims development
experience can be used to project future claims development and hence ultimate claims costs. As such,
these methods extrapolate the development of paid and incurred losses, average costs per claim
(severity) and average number of claims (frequency) based on the observed development of earlier
years and expected loss ratios. Historical claims development is analyzed by event year, geographical
area, as well as claim type. Loss ratio is the ratio of total claims incurred to total premiums earned for
the portfolio.

Additional qualitative judgment is used to assess the extent to which past trends may not apply in the
future (e.g., to reflect one-off occurrences, changes in external or market factors such as attitudes to
claiming, economic conditions, levels of claims inflation and legislation, as well as internal factors such
as portfolio mix, policy features and claims handling procedures) to arrive at the estimated ultimate
cost of claims that present the probability weighted expected value outcome from the range of
possible outcomes, taking into account all the uncertainties involved.

The Corporation has decided not to discount the LIC for the time value of money as most of the claims
incurred are expected to be settled within a 12-month period. An insignificant portion of the LIC is
expected to be carried over beyond 12 months, with an immaterial impact on LIC and statement of
profit or loss. The Corporation will regularly monitor the time it takes in settling claims from the date
they are incurred. The Corporation has elected the accounting policy choice to present entire insurance
finance income or expense for the period in the statement of profit or loss.

Presentation

The Corporation presents separately, in the statement of financial position, the carrying amount of
portfolios of insurance contracts issued that are assets, portfolios of insurance contracts issued that
are liabilities, portfolios of reinsurance contracts held that are assets and portfolios of reinsurance
contracts held that are liabilities.

The Corporation disaggregates the total amount recognised in the statement of profit or loss into an
insurance service result, comprising insurance revenue and insurance service expense, and insurance
finance income or expenses.
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The Corporation separately presents income or expenses from reinsurance contracts held from the
expenses or income from insurance contracts issued.

The Corporation has chosen not to disaggregate the change in risk adjustment for non-financial risk
between a financial and non-financial portion. Hence, the total charge for both financial and insurance
portions are included as part of the insurance service result in the statement of profit or loss.

Risk adjustment for non-financial risk

The risk adjustment for non-financial risk is applied to the present value of the estimated future cash
flows, and it reflects the compensation that the Corporation requires for bearing the uncertainty about
the amount and timing of the cash flows from non-financial risk as the Corporation fulfils insurance
contracts. The Corporation has chosen a confidence level based on the 97.5 percentile of the
distribution of the claim reserves, considering the confidence level is adequate to cover sources of
uncertainty about the amount and timing of the cash flows.

Insurance revenue

The insurance revenue for the period is the amount of expected premium receipts allocated to the
period (excluding any investment component). The Company allocates the expected premium receipts
to each period of insurance contract services on the basis of the passage of time. But if the expected
pattern of release of risk during the coverage period differs significantly from the passage of time, then
the allocation is made on the basis of the expected timing of incurred insurance service expenses.

The Corporation changes the basis of allocation between the two methods above as necessary, if facts
and circumstances change. The change is accounted for prospectively as a change in accounting
estimate.

For the periods presented, all revenue has been recognised on the basis of the passage of time.

Fee income from insurance is calculated in accordance with the terms of agreement and is accounted
for on an accrual basis and are recognised in insurance revenue.

Insurance revenue is adjusted to allow for policyholders’ default on future premiums. The default
probability is derived from the expected credit loss model prescribed under IFRS 9 using simplified
approach which involves estimating future loss rate using historical trend and incorporating
macroeconomic factors. The impact of expected credit loss method is immaterial as of the reporting
date.

Insurance service expense

Insurance service expenses arising from a group of insurance contracts issued comprises:

e Changes in the LIC related to claims and expenses incurred in the period excluding repayment of
investment components

e Changes in the LIC related to claims and expenses incurred in prior periods (related to past service)
¢ Other directly attributable insurance service expenses incurred in the period

e Amortisation of insurance acquisition cash flows, which is recognised at the same amount in both
insurance service expenses and insurance contract revenue
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Insurance acquisition costs

Insurance acquisition cash flows are the costs that are directly associated with selling, underwriting
and starting a group of insurance contracts (issued or expected to be issued) and that are directly
attributable to a portfolio of insurance contracts. Acquisition costs fall under the insurance service
expense. The Corporation amortizes the insurance acquisition costs over the contract period.

Directly attributable expenses

Directly attributable expenses are the costs that can be fully or partially attributed to the fulfillment of
the groups of insurance contracts. The Corporate allocates the attributable costs based on a number
of drivers. Attributable costs fall under the insurance service expense. While the non-attributable costs
are reported under other operating expenses.

Insurance finance income and expense / reinsurance finance income and expenses

The insurance / reinsurance finance income or expenses of the Corporation represent the foreign
exchange gains or losses. The Corporation presents insurance / reinsurance finance income or
expenses on group of insurance contracts issued / reinsurance contracts held in the statement of profit
or loss.

Net income or expense from reinsurance contracts held

The Corporation presents separately on the face of the statement of profit or loss, the amounts
expected to be recovered from reinsurers, and an allocation of the reinsurance premiums paid. The
Corporation treats reinsurance cash flows that are contingent on claims on the underlying contracts as
part of the claims that are expected to be reimbursed under the reinsurance contract held, and
excludes commissions from an allocation of reinsurance premiums presented on the face of the
statement of profit or loss.

Investment components

The Corporation identifies the investment component of a contract by determining the amount that it
would be received from the reinsurer in all scenarios with commercial substance. These include
circumstances in which an insured event occurs or the contract matures or is terminated without an
insured event occurring. Investment components are excluded from allocation of reinsurance
premiums and amounts recoverable from reinsurers for incurred claims. The Corporation has not
identified any investment component embedded in the insurance contracts issued.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment in value.
Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Vehicles 5 years
Furniture and fixtures 5 years
Office equipment 5 years
Computer equipment 4 years

The carrying values of property and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists, and
where the carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable amount, the assets are written down to
their recoverable amount, being the higher of their fair value less costs to sell and their value in use.
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Expenditure incurred to replace a component of an item of property and equipment that is accounted
for separately is capitalized and the carrying amount of the component that is replaced is written off.
Other subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases future economic benefits of the
related item of property and equipment. All other expenditures are recognized in the statement of profit
or loss as the expense is incurred.

Provisions

A provision is recognized when the Corporation has an obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a
past event, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation as of the reporting date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding
the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered
from a third party, a receivable is recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will
be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Employee benefits liabilities

The Corporation operates three defined post-employment benefit plans for its employees, the Staff
Retirement Pension Plan (“SRPP”), the Staff Retirement Medical Plan (“SRMP”) and the Retirement
Medical Solidarity Plan (“RMSP”). All of these plans require contributions to be made to separately
administered funds. A defined benefit plan is a plan that defines an amount of benefit that an employee
will receive on retirement, usually dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of service and
percentage of final gross salary. Independent actuaries calculate the defined benefit obligation on an
annual basis by using the Projected Unit Credit Method to determine the present value of the defined
benefit plan and the related service costs. The underlying actuarial assumptions are used to determine
the projected benefit obligations.

A full actuarial valuation is performed every three years by engaging independent actuaries. For
intermediate years, the defined benefit obligation is estimated by the independent actuaries using
approximate actuarial roll-forward techniques that allow for additional benefit accrual, actual cash flows
and changes in the underlying actuarial assumptions.

Actuarial valuation results presented as of December 31, 2024, a full valuation was performed based on
data as of November 30, 2024, and then roll forwarded to December 31, 2024. Except for RMSP, actuarial
valuation results presented as of December 31, 2024, is based on a roll forward of the data as of 2023.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation due until the retirement date is determined by
discounting the estimated future cash outflows (relating to service accrued to the reporting date) using
the yields available on US AA rated corporate bonds. The bonds have terms to maturity closely matching
the terms of the actual defined benefit obligation.

The current service cost of the defined benefit plan recognized in the income statement reflects the
increase in the defined benefit obligation resulting from employee service in the current year. The cost

on defined benefit obligation represents increase in liability due to passage of time.

Retrospective modifications to benefits or curtailment gain or loss are accounted for as past service costs
or income in the statement of income in the period of plan amendment.
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Actuarial gains or losses, if material, are recognized immediately in the reserves under members’ equity
in the year they occur. The pension liability is recognized as part of other liabilities in the statement of
financial position. The liability represents the present value of the Corporation’s defined benefit
obligations, net of the fair value of plan assets.

The pension committee, with advice from the Corporation’s actuaries, determines the Corporation’s
contributions to the defined benefit scheme and the contributions are transferred to the scheme’s
independent custodians.

d. Summary accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs, requires the use of certain critical
accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Company’s
accounting policies. Such judgements, estimates, and assumptions are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including obtaining professional advice and
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Critical judgements in applying the Corporation’s accounting policies

i) Business model assessment

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the SPPP and the
business model test (please see financial assets sections of note 3). The Corporation determines the
business model at a level that reflects how groups of financial assets are managed together to achieve
a particular business objective. This assessment includes judgement reflecting all relevant evidence
including how the performance of the assets is evaluated and their performance measured, the risks
that affect the performance of the assets and how these are managed and how the managers of the
assets are compensated. The Corporation monitors financial assets and monitoring is part of the
Management’s continuous assessment of whether the business model for which the financial assets
are held continues to be appropriate and if it is not appropriate whether there has been a change in
business model and so a prospective change to the classification of those assets. No such changes
were made during the periods presented.

ii) Significant increase in credit risk

As explained in note 3, ECL are measured as an allowance equal to 12-month ECL for stage 1 financial
assets, or lifetime ECL for stage 2 or stage 3 financial assets. A financial asset moves to stage 2 when
its credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition. IFRS 9 does not define what
constitutes a significant increase in credit risk. In assessing whether the credit risk of an asset has
significantly increased the Corporation takes into account qualitative and quantitative reasonable and
supportable information.

iii) Going concern
The Corporation’s management has made an assessment of the Corporation’s ability to continue as a

going concern and is satisfied that it has the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable
future. Furthermore, management is not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast significant
doubt upon the Corporation’s ability to continue as a going concern. Therefore, the financial
statements continue to be prepared on the going concern basis.
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iv) Insurance Contracts

The Corporation issues insurance contracts that transfer insurance risk. Insurance contracts are those
contracts where the insurer accepts significant insurance risk from the policyholder by agreeing to
compensate the policyholder if a specified uncertain future event adversely affects the policyholder.
The Corporation uses judgement to assess whether a contract transfers insurance risk (that is, if there
is a scenario with commercial substance in which the Corporation has the possibility of a loss on a
present value basis) and whether the accepted insurance risk is significant. In making this assessment,
all substantive rights, and obligations, including those arising from law or regulation, are considered
on a contract-by-contract basis.

The measurement of these insurance contracts also requires significant judgement and estimates.
These significant judgement and estimates include risk adjustment (“RA”) and liability for incurred
claims — estimate of future cash flows. Refer to note 3 above for further details.

v) Identification of portfolios:

The Corporation defines a portfolio as insurance contracts subject to similar risks and managed together.
Contracts within the same product line are expected to be in the same portfolio as they have similar
risks and are managed together. The assessment of which risks are similar and how contracts are
managed requires the exercise of judgement.

vi) Level of aggregation
The Corporation applies judgement when distinguishing between contracts that have no significant
possibility of becoming onerous and other profitable contracts.

vii) Determination of the contract boundary

The measurement of a group of insurance contracts includes all the future cash flows arising within the
contract boundary. In determining which cash flows fall within a contract boundary, the Corporation
considers its substantive rights and obligations arising from the terms of the contract, from applicable
law, regulation and customary business practices. Cash flows are considered to be outside of the
contract boundary if the Corporation has the practical ability to reprice existing contracts to reflect their
reassessed risks, and if the contract’s pricing for coverage up to the date of reassessment only considers
the risks until the next reassessment date. The Corporation applies its judgement in assessing whether
it has the practical ability to set a price that fully reflects all the risks in the contract or portfolio.

viii) Assessment of directly attributable cash flows

The Corporation uses judgement in assessing whether cash flows are directly attributable to a specific
portfolio of insurance contracts. Insurance acquisition cash flows are included in the measurement of a
group of insurance contracts only if they are directly attributable to the individual contracts in a group,
or to the group itself, or the portfolio of insurance contracts to which the group belongs. When
estimating fulfilment cash flows, the Corporation also allocates fixed and variable overheads fulfilment
cash flows directly attributable to the fulfilment of insurance contracts.

The Corporation identifies expenses which are directly attributable towards acquiring insurance
contracts (acquisition costs) and fulfilling /maintaining (other attributable expenses) such contracts
and those expenses which are not directly attributable to the aforementioned contracts (non-
attributable expenses).

Acquisition costs, such as underwriting costs including other expenses except for initial commission

paid, are no longer recognized in the statement of profit or loss when incurred and instead spread
over the lifetime of the group of contracts based on the passage of time.
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Other attributable expenses are allocated to the groups of contracts using an allocation mechanism
considering the activity-based costing principles. The Corporation has determined costs directly
identified to the groups of contracts, as well as, costs where a judgement is applied to determine the
share of expenses as applicable to that group.

On the other hand, non-directly attributable expenses, overheads and one-off exceptional expenses
is recognized in the statement of profit or loss immediately when incurred. The proportion of directly
attributable and non-attributable costs at inception will change the pattern at which expenses are
recognized.

ix) PAA eligibility assessment

The Corporation has calculated a Liability for remaining coverage (LRC) and Asset for remaining

coverage (ARC) for those groups of insurance contracts written and reinsurance contracts held

respectively where the coverage period was more than one year. The calculation was performed

under both simplified approach i.e. Premium Allocation Approach (PAA) and General Measurement

Mode (GMM). Situations, which may cause the LRC and / or ARC under the PAA to differ from the LRC

and / or ARC under the GMM:

- When the expectation of the profitability for the remaining coverage changes at a particular
valuation date during the coverage period of a group of contracts;

- If yield curves change significantly from those in place at the Corporation’s initial recognition;

- When the incidence of claims occurrence differs from the coverage units; and

- The effect of discounting under the GMM creates an inherent difference; this difference compounds
over longer contract durations.

Upon analysis of the possible differences between LRC and / or ARC applying the PAA and GMM
approach, respectively, the Corporation did not note any material difference for contracts with
coverage period of more than one year. Hence, it has opted to report all such contracts using the PAA
approach maintaining a consistent accounting treatment to the rest of the portfolio of insurance
contracts issued and reinsurance contracts held that have a coverage period of up to one year. The
Corporation assesses materiality at each respective group of contracts level (GoCs) and at an
aggregate insurance contract liabilities / re-insurance contract assets level using pre-determined
guantitative threshold for differences at the GoCs.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The Corporation has made various accounting estimates in these financial statements based on
forecasts of economic conditions which reflect expectations and assumptions as of the reporting date
about future events that the Corporation believe are reasonable in the circumstances. There is a
considerable degree of judgement involved in preparing these estimates. The underlying assumptions
are also subject to uncertainties which are often outside the control of the Corporation. Accordingly,
actual economic conditions are likely to be different from those forecast since anticipated events
frequently do not occur as expected, and the effect of those differences may significantly impact
accounting estimates included in these financial statements.

Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised, if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of revision and in future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

i) Allowance for expected credit loss and expected premium receipts

The measurement of ECL under IFRS 9 requires judgement, in particular, the estimation of the amount
and timing of future cash flows when determining impairment losses and the assessment of a
significant increase in credit risk. These estimates are driven by a number of factors, changes in which
can result in different levels of allowances.
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The Corporation’s ECL calculations are outputs of complex models with a number of underlying
assumptions regarding the choice of variable inputs and their interdependencies.

The selection of an estimation technique or modelling methodology, covering below key judgements
and assumptions, and the interdependencies between those inputs such as macroeconomic scenarios
and economic inputs.

a) The Company’s model, which assigns Probability of Default ("PD”).

b) Loss Given Default (“LGD”) determination considering recoveries and cure rate etc.

c) The Company’s criteria for assessing if there has been a significant increase in credit risk and so
allowances should be measured on a Lifetime ECL basis;

d) The segmentation of financial assets when their ECL is assessed;

e) Development of ECL models, including the various formulas; and

f) Selection of forward-looking macroeconomic scenarios and their probability weightings, to
derive the economic inputs into the ECL models.

ii) Discounting rates

Insurance contract and reinsurance contract liabilities and assets respectively are calculated by
discounting expected future cash flows at a discount rate that reflects the characteristics of the cash
flows and the liquidity characteristics of the insurance contracts, where applicable. The Corporation
applies a bottom-up approach to derive the applicable yield curve when determining the discount
rate, whilst also considering the currency of the various cash flows. The Corporation primarily writes
Euro and USD-denominated policies, and therefore the curves selected were based on the European
Insurance and Occupational Pensions Authority (EIOPA) volatility adjusted risk-free curve and
the United States swap curve whilst applying certain adjustments for factors under IFRS 17, where
applicable. For the valuation period, the expected timing of future cash flows was considered to be
settled materially within a year, and therefore the Corporation did not apply discounting to the
expected future cash flows. The discount rates are therefore not disclosed.

iii) Risk adjustment methodology, including correlations, and confidence level selected

The risk adjustment for non-financial risk is the compensation that the Corporation requires for
bearing the uncertainty about the amount and timing of the cash flows of groups of insurance
contracts. The risk adjustment reflects an amount that an insurer would rationally pay to remove the
uncertainty that future cash flows will exceed the expected value of claims.

The Corporation has estimated the risk adjustment using a confidence level (probability of sufficiency)
approach at the 97.5-percentile. That is, the Corporation has assessed its indifference to uncertainty
for all product lines, as an indication of the compensation that it requires for bearing nonfinancial risk
as being equivalent to the 97.5-percentile confidence level less the mean of an estimated probability
distribution of the future cash flows.

The Company has appointed a qualified actuary who supports in reviewing and providing
recommendation with regards to the expected ultimate claims and the associated claims reserves.
The Company booked reserves following the recommendation of the appointed actuary who is
currently external and independent from the Company. A range of methods were used by the
appointed actuary to determine these claims. From the diverse methods available to estimate the
volatility of future cash flows and, thus, the applicable confidence interval for each line of business,
the Corporation relied on the VaR method making use of the Basel Ill approach.
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iv) Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value for financial instruments in active markets at the reporting date is based on their quoted
market price. Where the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded on the statement
of financial position cannot be derived from active markets, they are determined using a variety of
valuation techniques that include the use of mathematical models. The inputs to these models are
derived from observable market data where possible, but if this is not available, judgement is required
to establish fair values. For investments where Level 1 inputs are not available , there is no quoted
market price, a reasonable estimate of the fair value is determined by reference to the investee’s latest
available financial statements or is based on the assessment by the Corporation of the value of future
cash flows from the investment.

The valuations of equity investments are particularly sensitive to changes in one or more unobservable
inputs which are considered reasonably possible within the next financial year. Further information on
the carrying amounts of these assets and the sensitivity of those amounts to changes in unobservable
inputs are provided in note 16.

4  ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS

4.1 Amended and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) Standards that are
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Corporation has applied a number of amendments to IFRS Standards and
Interpretations issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) that are effective for
an annual period that begins on or after January 1, 2024.

Their adoption has not had any material impact on the disclosures or on the amounts reported in
these financial statements.

New and revised IFRS

Summary

Amendment to IFRS 16 — Leases
on sale and leaseback

These amendments include requirements for sale and leaseback
transactions in IFRS 16 to explain how an entity accounts for a
sale and leaseback after the date of the transaction. Sale and
leaseback transactions where some or all the lease payments
are variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or
rate are most likely to be impacted.

Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7
on Supplier finance
arrangements

These amendments require disclosures to enhance the
transparency of supplier finance arrangements and their effects
on a company’s liabilities, cash flows and exposure to liquidity
risk. The disclosure requirements are the IASB’s response to
investors’ concerns that some companies’ supplier finance
arrangements are not sufficiently visible, hindering investors’
analysis.

Amendment to IAS 1 — Non-
current liabilities with covenants
and Classification of liabilities as
current or non-current

These amendments clarify how conditions with which an entity
must comply within twelve months after the reporting period
affect the classification of a liability. The amendments also aim
to improve information an entity provides related to liabilities
subject to these conditions.

IFRS S1, ‘General requirements
for disclosure of sustainability-
related financial information

This standard includes the core framework for the disclosure of
material information about sustainability-related risks and
opportunities across an entity’s value chain.

IFRS S2, ‘Climate-related
disclosures’

This is the first thematic standard issued that sets out
requirements for entities to disclose information about climate-
related risks and opportunities.

Other than the above, there are no other significant IFRSs and amendments that were effective for
the first time for the financial period beginning on or after January 1, 2024 and relevant to the

Corporation’s operations.
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4.2 New and revised IFRS in issue but not yet effective and not early adopted

At the date of authorization of these financial statements, the Corporation has not applied the
following new and revised IFRS Standards that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Effective for
annual periods
New and revised IFRSs beginning on or after

Amendment to IFRS 21 — Lack of exchangeability January 1, 2025
IASB amended IAS 21 to add requirements to help in determining whether a
currency is exchangeable into another currency, and the spot exchange rate
to use when it is not exchangeable. Amendment set out a framework under
which the spot exchange rate at the measurement date could be determined
using an observable exchange rate without adjustment or another estimation

technique.
Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28- Sale or Contribution of Assets between Effective date
an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture deferred indefinitely

Partial gain or loss recognition for transactions between an investor and its
associate or joint venture only apply to the gain or loss resulting from the sale
or contribution of assets that do not constitute a business as defined in IFRS
3 Business Combinations and the gain or loss resulting from the sale or
contribution to an associate or a joint venture of assets that constitute a
business as defined in IFRS 3 is recognized in full.

Amendments to IFRS 9 Financial Instruments and IFRS 7 Financial January 1, 2026
Instruments: Disclosures

Under the amendments, certain financial assets including those with ESG-
linked features could now meet the SPPI criterion, provided that their cash
flows are not significantly different from an identical financial asset without
such a feature.

The IASB has amended IFRS 9 to clarify when a financial asset or a financial
liability is recognized and derecognized and to provide an exception for
certain financial liabilities settled using an electronic payment system.

IFRS 18, Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements January 1, 2026
IFRS 18 provides guidance on items in statement of profit or loss classified into
five categories: operating; investing; financing; income taxes and
discontinued operations It defines a subset of measures related to an entity’s
financial performance as ‘management-defined performance measures’
(‘MPMs’). The totals, subtotals and line items presented in the primary
financial statements and items disclosed in the notes need to be described in
a way that represents the characteristics of the item. It requires foreign
exchange differences to be classified in the same category as the income and
expenses from the items that resulted in the foreign exchange differences.

IFRS 19, Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures January 1, 2027
IFRS 19 allows eligible subsidiaries to apply IFRS Accounting Standards with
the reduced disclosure requirements of IFRS 19. A subsidiary may choose to
apply the new standard in its consolidated, separate or individual financial
statements provided that, at the reporting date it does not have public
accountability and its parent produces consolidated financial statements
under IFRS Accounting Standards.
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5. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

December 31, December 31,

2024 2023
Shareholders’ fund
Cash at banks 16,680 974
Commodity Murabaha placements (see note (a) and 6.2 below) 153 1,464
Less: Expected credit loss (2) (1)
Policyholders’ fund
Cash at banks 5,935 2,594
Commodity Murabaha placements (see note (a) and 6.2 below) 15,419 16,781
Less: Expected credit loss (4) (12)
38,181 21,800

a) Commodity Murabaha placements are held with financial institutions having an original maturity
not exceeding three months.

b) Certain bank balances are held in the name of IsDB for and on behalf of the Corporation and the
Corporation’s Euroclear custodian account is held in the name of International Islamic Trade
Finance Corporation (ITFC), a related party. The Corporation is the beneficial owner of these cash
and cash equivalents.

6. INVESTMENTS HELD AT AMORTIZED COST
Investments held by the Corporation at amortized cost consist of the following as of:

December 31, December 31,

2024 2023
Sukuk (see note 6.1) 215,014 162,917
Commodity Murabaha placements (see note 6.2) 95,224 86,911
Murabaha Syndicated Investments (see note 6.3) 1,006 1,485
311,244 251,313
6.1 Sukuk
2024 2023
The movement in investments in Sukuk is as follows:
At beginning of the year 162,917 129,649
Additions 99,823 80,377
Redemption (51,607) (45,985)
Expected credit loss allowance (see note 6.4) (1,458) (5)
Foreign currency translation adjustment 4,294 (1,501 )
Accrued income, net 813 348
Amortization 232 34
At end of the year 215,014 162,917

All investments in Sukuk are held in the name of IsDB for and on behalf of the Corporation. The
Corporation is the beneficial owner of these investments in Sukuk. As of December 31, 2024, the
expected credit loss allowance of these sukuk was ID 2.202 million (2023: ID: 0.696 million).

Investments in sukuk includes sukuks issued by a related party recognized at the carrying value of ID
56.7 million (2023: ID 44.55 million).
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6.2 Commodity Murabaha placements

December 31, December 31,
2024 2023

Shareholders’ fund

Gross Commodity Murabaha placements 26,329 57,315
Less: Commodity Murabaha placements with

an original maturity of three months or less

(see note 5) (153) (1,464)
Less: Expected credit loss (see note 6.4) (12) (80)

Policyholders’ funds

Gross Commodity Murabaha placements 84,499 47,933
Less: Commodity Murabaha placements with

an original maturity of three months or less

(see note 5) (15,419) (16,781)
Less: Expected credit loss (see note 6.4) (20) (12)

Commodity Murabaha placements with original
maturity of more than three months 95,224 86,911

All Commodity Murabaha placements are held in the name of IsDB for and on behalf of the
Corporation. The Corporation is the beneficial owner of these Commodity Murabaha placements.

6.3 Murabaha Syndicated Investments

December 31, December 31,

2024 2023
Shareholders’ fund
Murabaha Syndicated Investments 71 69
Less: Expected credit loss (see note 6.4) (71) (6)
Policyholders’ funds
Murabaha Syndicated Investments 1,017 1,435
Less: Expected credit loss (see note 6.4) (11) (13)
Total Murabaha Syndicated Investments 1,006 1,485

Murabaha Syndicated Investments are made through ITFC.

6.4 The movement in expected credit losses on investments at amortised cost and cash and cash
equivalent (see note 5) is as follows:

2024 2023
Shareholders’ fund
Balance at beginning of the year 783 812
Charge / (reversal) for the year 1,454 (22)
Foreign currency translation adjustment 47 (7)
2,284 783
Policyholders’ funds
Balance at beginning of the year 37 180
Reversal for the year (3) (142)
Foreign currency translation adjustment 4 (1)
38 37
Total 2,322 820
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7.

INVESTMENTS HELD AT FAIR VALUE

Details of the investments held at fair value consist of the following:

December 31, December 31,

2024 2023
Investments in debt instruments classified as at FVTOCI
Sukuk (a) - 3,707
Investments in equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI
Units in Real Estate Investment Fund (b) 2,902 2,817
Units in Sukuk Fund (b) 10,799 10,204
Units in Equity Fund (c) 808 441
Financial assets mandatorily measured at FVTPL
Units in ICD - Unit Investment Fund (b) 317 508
14,826 17,677

a) The investments in quoted Sukuk issued by Saudi Electricity Company was matured on April 8,

b)

d)

e)

2024 and the Corporation received a nominal amount of ID 3.7 million.

Fair values of unquoted investments in these entities are based on net asset value statements at
year end of the respective entity.

All the investments are held under the name of IsDB except for investment in equity instrument
designated at FVOCI. The Corporation is the beneficial owner of all these investments measured
at fair value.

The investments in equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI are not held for trading. Instead,
they are held for medium to long-term strategic purposes. Accordingly, the Corporation have
elected to designate these investments in equity instruments as at FVTOCI as it believes that
recognising short-term fluctuations in these investments’ fair value in profit or loss would not be
consistent with the Corporation’s strategy of holding these investments for long-term purposes
and realising their performance potential in the long run.

Takaful Re is currently under liquidation and management has fully amortized this considering no

further cash inflows are expected. The value of investment and impairment as of December 31,
2024 is ID 997k (2023: 1D 969k)
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The movement in investments held at fair value is as follows:

Level 1 Level 3 2024 2023
Cost:
At beginning of the year 3,727 22,525 26,252 33,770
Additions - 757 757 699
Redemption (3,747) (382) (4,129) (8,007)
Foreign currency translation
adjustment 20 655 675 (210)
At end of the year - 23,555 23,555 26,252
Changes in fair value:
At beginning of the year (20) (8,555) (8,575) (8,961)
Recognized in OCI 20 (109) (89) 316
Recognized in PL - 180 180 -
Foreign currency translation
adjustment (245) (245) 70
At end of the year - (8,729) (8,729) (8,575)
Net Carrying amount - 14,826 14,826 17,677
Investment income recognized in statement of profit or loss
2024 2023
Financial instruments measured at amortised cost:
Bank and Murabaha placements 5,163 5,883
Sukuk 8,149 5,677
13,312 11,560
Investment in debt instruments measured at FVTOCI
Sukuk - 30
Dividends received from equity investments designated as at
FVTOCI
Relating to investments held at the end of the reporting period 673 604
13,985 12,194
Gain/ (loss) recognized in statement of other comprehensive income
2024 2023
Gain / (loss) on investments in debt instruments measured at
FVTOCI 109 244
Gain / (loss) on investments in equity instruments measured at
FVTOCI (20) 72
89 316
INSURANCE AND REINSURANCE CONTRACTS
December 31, December 31,
2024 2023
Insurance contract liabilities 212,113 149,907
Reinsurance contract assets (101,895) (81,470)
110,218 68,437
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8.1 Analysis by remaining coverage and incurred claims for insurance contracts

December 31, 2024

Liability for remaining coverage Liability for incurred claims
(LRC) (LIC)
Estimate of the
Excluding loss Loss present value of Risk Total
component component future cash flows adjustment
Insurance contract issued:
Opening insurance contract liabilities 85,145 - 30,139 34,623 149,907
Opening insurance contract assets - - - -
Net opening balance 85,145 - 30,139 34,623 149,907
Insurance revenue (78,270) - - - (78,270)
Insurance service expenses
Incurred claims and other directly attributable expenses - - 26,060 34,960 61,020
Changes that relate to past service adjustments to the LIC - - (3,592) (20,881) (24,473)
Insurance acquisition cash flows amortization 6,919 - - - 6,919
Insurance service expenses 6,919 - 22,468 14,079 43,466
Insurance service result (71,351) - 22,468 14,079 (34,804)
Net finance expenses from insurance contracts (4,783) - (119) - (4,902)
Total changes in statement of profit or loss (76,134) - 22,349 14,079 (39,706)
Foreign currency translation adjustment- recognised in OCI 2,977 - 1,105 1,247 5,329
Cash flows
Premium received 112,716 - - - 112,716
Claims and other directly attributable expenses paid - - (9,042) - (9,042)
Insurance acquisition cash flows paid (7,091) - - - (7,091)
Total cashflows 105,625 - (9,042) - 96,583
Net closing balance 117,613 - 44,551 49,949 212,113
Closing insurance contract liabilities 117,613 - 44,551 49,949 212,113

Closing insurance contract assets - - - - -
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8.1 Analysis by remaining coverage and incurred claims for insurance contracts (continued)

December 31, 2023

Liability for remaining coverage Liability for incurred claims
(LRC) (LIC)
Estimate of the
Excluding loss Loss present value of Risk Total
component component future cash flows adjustment
Insurance contract issued:
Opening insurance contract liabilities 65,900 - 32,269 37,844 136,013
Opening insurance contract assets - - - - -
Net opening balance 65,900 - 32,269 37,844 136,013
Insurance revenue (57,064) - - - (57,064)
Insurance service expenses
Incurred claims and other directly attributable expenses - - 21,336 24,534 42,031
Changes that relate to past service adjustments to the LIC - - (13,037) (27,466) (36,664)
Insurance acquisition cash flows amortization 4,811 - - - 4,811
Insurance service expenses 4,811 - 8,299 (2,932) 10,178
Insurance service result (52,253) - 8,299 (2,932) (46,886)
Net finance income from insurance contracts 2,378 - - - 2,378
Total changes in statement of profit or loss (49,875) - 8,299 (2,932) (44,508)
Foreign currency translation adjustment— recognised in OCI (655) - (249) (289) (1,193)
Cash flows
Premium received 74,602 - - - 74,602
Claims and other directly attributable expenses paid - - (10,180) - (10,180)
Insurance acquisition cash flows paid (4,827) - - - (4,827)
Total cashflows 69,775 - (10,180) - 59,595
Net closing balance 85,145 - 30,139 34,623 149,907
Closing insurance contract liabilities 85,145 - 30,139 34,623 149,907

Closing insurance contract assets - - - - -
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8.2 Analysis by remaining coverage and incurred claims for reinsurance contracts

December 31, 2024

Asset for remaining coverage

Asset for incurred claims

Excluding Estimate of the
loss recovery Loss recovery present value of
component component future cash flows Risk adjustment Total

Reinsurance contract issued:
Opening reinsurance contract liabilities - - - -
Opening reinsurance contract assets (38,380) (19,443) (23,647) (81,470)
Net opening balance (38,380) (19,443) (23,647) (81,470)
Reinsurance expense 46,063 - - 46,063
Claims recovered and other directly attributable expenses - (14,513) (28,285) (42,798)
Changes that relate to past service adjustments to the asset

for incurred claims - 4,485 15,004 19,489
Net expense from the reinsurance service expenses 46,063 (10,028) (13,281) 22,754
Net finance income from reinsurance contracts held 2,483 - - 2,483
Total changes in statement of profit or loss 48,546 (10,028) (13,281) 25,237
Foreign currency translation adjustment- recognised in OCI (1,020) (724) (918) (2,662)
Cash flows
Premiums paid net of ceding commissions (43,771) - - (43,771)
Recoveries from reinsurance - 1,486 - 1,486
Directly attributable expenses paid - (715) - (715)
Total cashflows (43,771) 771 - (43,000)
Net closing balance (34,625) (29,424) (37,846) (101,895)
Closing reinsurance contract liabilities - - - -
Closing reinsurance contract assets (34,625) (29,424) (37,846) (101,895)
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8.2 Analysis by remaining coverage and incurred claims for reinsurance contracts (continued)

December 31, 2023

Asset for remaining coverage Asset for incurred claims
Excluding Estimate of the
loss recovery Loss recovery present value of
component component future cash flows Risk adjustment Total
Reinsurance contract issued:
Opening reinsurance contract liabilities - - - - -
Opening reinsurance contract assets (23,720) - (22,820) (27,011) (73,551)
Net opening balance (23,720) - (22,820) (27,011) (73,551)
Reinsurance expense 30,589 - - - 30,589
Claims recovered and other directly attributable expenses - - (7,874) (15,917) (23,791)
Changes that relate to past service adjustments to the asset
for incurred claims - - 10,285 19,082 29,367
Net expense from the reinsurance service expenses 30,589 - 2,411 3,165 36,165
Net finance expense from reinsurance contracts held (1,357) - - - (1,357)
Total changes in statement of profit or loss 29,232 - 2,411 3,165 34,808
Foreign currency translation adjustment- recognised in OCI 280 - 165 199 644
Cash flows
Premiums paid net of ceding commissions (44,172) - - - (44,172)
Recoveries from reinsurance - - 1,503 - 1,503
Directly attributable expenses paid - - (702) - (702)
Total cashflows (44,172) - 801 - (43,371)
Net closing balance (38,380) - (19,443) (23,647) (81,470)
Closing reinsurance contract liabilities - - - - -
Closing reinsurance contract assets (38,380) - (19,443) (23,647) (81,470)

-40 -



n actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating results of the debtor;

gnificant increases in credit risk on other financial instruments of the same debtor; and
THE ISLAMIC CORPORATION FOR THE INSURANCE OF INVESTMENT AND EXPORT CREDIT
n actual or expected significant adverse chan e |n the re uIatory, economic, or technological

nvironment of thé\lg’ %F&ME&WANSI& se in the debtor’s abilit )to meet

R ENDED DECEMBER 1, 20 30 JUMAD AL THANI 1446

s debt ObllgatIcmgﬁixpressed in thousands of Islamic Dinars unless otherwise stated)

tive of the outcome of the above assessment, the Corporation presumes that the credit risk

ancial asset has ifcrea AdI\GANGES RREDALD EXRENSES ANIDOO THERM ASSETSctual payments are

an 30 days past due, unless the Corporation has reasonable and supportable information that 2024 2023
trates otherwise.

10.

Shareholders’ fund

Accrued income from investments 2,974 2,019

Policyholders’ fund

Staff advances - 16 - 2,596 2,934

Other receivables 122 377
2,718 3,311
5,692 5,330

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

Related parties represent member of the Board of Governors, member of the Board of Directors and
key management personnel of the Corporation, and affiliate entities of IsDB Group. In the ordinary
course of its activities, the Corporation transacts business with related parties. The terms of these
transactions are approved by the Corporation’s management.

In addition to investments held in the name of IsDB for and on behalf of the Corporation disclosed in
note 6 and note 7, transactions with related parties included in the statement of profit or loss are as
follows:

2024 2023
Shareholders’ fund
Investment management fees paid to IsDB — Ordinary Capital
Resources (‘OCR’) 432 612
Policyholders’ fund
Charges for office space paid to IsDB — OCR 1,127 1,032
Expenses paid by IsDB — OCR on behalf of the Corporation 1,626 1,453
Contributions to IsDB - Staff Retirement Medical and Pension Plans 1,258 1,321
4,011 3,806

Related parties’ balances included in the statement of financial position are as follows:

2024 2023
Policyholders’ fund
Due from:
Islamic Corporation for the Development of the
Private Sector (ICD) 193 188
Islamic Solidarity Fund for Development (ISFD) - 11
193 199
Due to:
Islamic Development Bank Ordinary Capital Resources - (IsDB - OCR) 666 481
IsDB — Staff Retirement Pension Plan 127 -
IsDB — Post-Employment Medical Scheme 24 -
IsDB — Pension DC 6 31
The Saudi Project for Utilization of Sacrificial Animals (ADAHI) - 1
Bunyan fund 1 1
824 514
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11.

Compensation for Key Management Personnel (“KMP”)

KMP are those having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities
of the Corporation. Accordingly, the Corporation’s KMP includes the selected key employees who
meet the above criteria.

Compensation paid or payable to key management personnel are shown below:

2024 2023
Salaries and other short-term benefits 394 509
Post-employment benefits - 604

The amounts disclosed above are the amounts recognized as an expense during the reporting period
related to key management personnel. Remuneration and compensation to key management
personnel includes salaries and allowances, bonuses, in-kind benefits and contributions to post-
employment defined benefit plan.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT RELATED TO POLICYHOLDERS’ FUND
Furniture
and Office  Computer Capital work

Vehicles fixtures equipment equipment in progress Total
Policyholders’ fund
Cost:
As of January 1, 2023 176 275 175 684 1,537 2,847
Additions 129 8 1 62 83 283
Disposals (61) (77) - - (138)
As of January 1, 2024 244 206 176 746 1,620 2,992
Additions - 1 4 56 175 236
As of December 31, 2024 244 207 180 802 1,795 3,228

Accumulated depreciation:

As of January 1, 2023 162 257 172 651 - 1,242
Charge for the year 39 17 2 27 - 85
Disposals (54) (76) - - (130)
As of January 1, 2024 147 198 174 678 - 1,197
Charge for the year 41 4 1 33 - 79
As of December 31, 2024 188 202 175 711 - 1,276
Net book value:

As of December 31, 2024 56 5 5 91 1,795 1,952
As of December 31, 2023 97 8 2 68 1,620 1,795

During 2019, the Corporation embarked on a multi-year information technology implementation
project and all costs incurred during the implementation period shall be classified as capital work in
progress until completion. Amortization will commence after commissioning of the system.
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12. ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER LIABILITIES

December 31,

December 31,

2024 2023

Shareholders’ liabilities
Earning not approved by Shari’ah board (see note (a) below) 264 257
Other payables 2,158 1,616
2,422 1,873

Policyholders’ liabilities
Accrued administrative expenses 6,024 6,872
Other payables 7,729 1,277
13,753 8,149
16,175 10,022

a) This represents net accumulated income up to December 31, 2024 which were not considered in
compliance with the Shari’ah principles. As per the recommendation of the Shari’ah Board of IsDB,
this income needs to be utilized for charitable purposes and, therefore, has been classified as a
liability. The sources and uses of Shari’ah non-compliant income during the year ended are as
follows:

December 31, December 31,

13.

2024 2023
Legacy interest from placements with conventional banks 257 256
Premium not utilized by policyholder - 86
Balance at beginning of the year 257 342
Income during the year -
Payments made during the year
Technical Advisory Sponsorship expenses -
Adjustment of premium not utilized by policyholder (82)
Forex valuations on accumulated balance 7 (3)
Balance at end of the year 264 257

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS LIABILITIES

IsDB Group staff retirement plan comprises of defined benefit and hybrid plan, staff pension plan
(“SPP”), staff retirement medical plan (SRMP) and Retirement Medical Solidarity Fund (RMSF)
(collectively referred to as staff retirement plans (“SRPs”)). Every person employed by the Bank and
its Affiliates on a full-time basis, as defined in the Bank and Affiliates employment policies, is eligible
to participate in the SRP from the date joining the Bank.

IsDB Group has a multi-employer plan and includes the Corporation, Islamic Development Bank -
Ordinary Capital Resources (IsDB-OCR), Special Account Resources Waqgf Fund (WAQF), Islamic
Corporation for Development of the Private Sector (ICD), International Islamic Trade Finance
Corporation (ITFC) and Islamic Solidarity Fund for Development (ISFD).

Staff Pension Plan (SPP)

SPP is a combination of both old defined benefit plan (Pillar I) and new hybrid pension plan (Pillar II)
became effective on 1st Rajab 1399H (corresponding to May 27, 1979) and 17/05/1442H
(01/01/2023G) respectively. Every person employed by the Bank and its Affiliates on a full-time basis
except for fixed term employees, as defined in the employment policies of the Bank and its Affiliates,
is eligible to participate in the SPP, from the date joining the Bank and its affiliates. Participation in
the hybrid pension plan is limited to those who have less than five years of service as of December
31, 2021 on optional basis however, those who joined the Bank from January 1, 2021 are enrolled
automatically.
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In both Pillars, the employee contributes at a rate of 11.1% (2023-11.1%) of the basic annual salary
while the Bank and its Affiliates contribute 25.9% (2023-25.9%).

The main features of the SPP are:

(i) Normal retirement age is the 62nd anniversary of the participant’s birth.

(i)  On retirement, the eligible retired employee is entitled to 2.5% under the old staff
retirement plan or 1% under the hybrid plan in the Define Benefit (“DB”) component, of the
Weighted Highest Average Remuneration (“WHAR")(as defined by the pension committee)(
for each year of pensionable service and limited to a maximum of 30 hijri years.

(iii)  10% of Bank and its Affiliates contribution of 25.9%, and 5% of employees contribution of
11.1%, are used to fund the Define Cost (“DC”) component of the hybrid plan. The
accumulated fund and its investment returns will be paid as retirement lump sum benefits
to the participants in the hybrid plan.

(iv) Benefits payment upon early retirement, disability benefits, termination benefits, pre-
retirement death or post-retirement death benefits are also paid as determined by the
Pension Committee.

Staff Retirement Medical Plan (SRMP)

Effective 1st Muharram 1421H (corresponding to April 6, 2000), the Bank established the medical
benefit scheme for retired employee via the BED resolution dated 18 Shawwal 1418H (corresponding
to February 15, 1998). This was extended to eligible staff members of the Bank’s Affiliates i.e. for SPP.
The Bank and its Affiliates at rate 1% and the staff at a rate 0.5% of the basic salaries respectively fund
the SRMP. The purpose of the SRMP is to pay a monthly amount to eligible retired employee towards
their medical expenses.

The entitlements payable for each retired employee under the medical plan is computed according to
the following formula:

WHAR (as defined by the pension committee) X contributory period (limited to a maximum of 30 hijri
years) X 0.18%

Benefits payment upon early retirement, disability benefits, termination benefits, pre-retirement
death or post-retirement death benefits are also paid as determined by the pension committee.

Retirees Medical Solidarity Fund (RMSF)

In February 2019, the BED approved, establishment of the Retirees Medical Solidarity Plan (RMSP)
which would provide new medical coverage benefits for IsDB Group staff future retirees. Under the
proposal, active staff members who have at least 10 years of service period before their normal
retirement age as of January 1, 2019 will automatically fall under RMSF. Those staff members who do
not meet the minimum service period threshold will be offered the option to join the new Fund.

Under RMSP, retirees will have their actual medical costs covered as per the minimum guaranteed
benefit schedule. This mainly covers hospitalization and emergency care, repatriation and ambulance
transport. Overseas specialist hospitalization and outpatient care is also covered but only in specified
countries.

Members of RMSP started to receive benefits as from April 1, 2022 (the start date of the Plan).

RMSP contributions are funded on 4/4/4 % basis. Employees contribute 4% of their pensionable
salaries and the employer matches it with 4%. Retirees also contribute 4% of their pension (before
commutation withdrawals). Both Employer and Employee contributions started to accrue on January
1, 2019 and at August 1, 2021, employees started cash contributions to RMSP. These contributions
cumulated before April 1, 2023 have been recognized as part of plan assets during the year.

Retirees didn’t contribute up until April 1, 2022 and received benefits under the SRMP up until that
point.
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Administration of SRPs

The Pension Committee appointed by the President of IsDB Group, administers SRPs as separate funds
on behalf of its employees. The Pension Committee is responsible for the oversight of investment and
actuarial activities of the SRPs. The SRP’s assets are invested in accordance with the policies set out
by the Pension Committee. The Bank and its affiliates underwrite the investment and actuarial risk of
the SRPs and share the administrative expenses.

Risks

Investment risk

The present value of the SRPs’ liability is calculated using a discount rate determined by reference to
high quality corporate bond yields; if the return on SRPs’ asset is below this rate, it will create a plan
deficit. Currently the SRPs’ have a relatively balanced investment in equity securities, debt
instruments and real estate. Due to the long-term nature of the SRPs’ liabilities, the administrator of
SRPs’ consider it appropriate that a reasonable portion of the SRPs’ assets should be invested in equity
securities and in real estate to leverage the return generated by the fund.

Discount rate
A decrease in the bond return rate will increase the SRPs’ liability but this will be partially offset by an
increase in the return on the SRPs’ debt investments.

Longevity risk

The present value of the SRPs’ liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality
of SRPs’ participants both during and after their employment. An increase in the life expectancy of
the SRPs’ participants will increase the SRPs’ liability.

Salary risk
The present value of the SRPs’ liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of SRPs’
participants. As such, an increase in the salary of the SRPs’ participants will increase the SRPS’ liability.

(a) The movement on plan assets and liabilities as follows:

SRPP SRMP RMSF Total Total
2024 2024 2024 2024 2023

Fair value of plan assets as of January 1 17,695 234 1,629 19,558 20,124
Adjustment of fair value at beginning of the year 478 2 3 483 (498)
Income on Plan Assets 894 17 98 1,009 924
Return on Plan Assets less than discount rate (464) (7) 83 (388) 426
Plan participants contribution 451 2 158 611 660
Employer contribution 1,054 6 154 1,214 1,271
Disbursements from Plan Assets (1,207) (32) (2) (1,241) (1,108)
Currency translation adjustment 408 131 56 595  (2,241)
Fair value of plan assets as of December 31 19,309 353 2,179 21,842 19,558
Benefit obligation as of January 1 24,038 652 481 25,171 24,873
Current Service costs 1,283 15 87 1,385 1,334
Past service cost - - - - -
Cost on Defined Benefit Obligation (“DBQO”) 1,192 32 29 1,253 1,147
Plan participants contributions 451 2 158 611 660
Disbursements from Plan Assets (1,207) (32) (2) (1,241) (1,108)
Net actuarial gain (3,843) (127) (358) (4,328) 553
Currency translation adjustment 639 15 12 666 (2,288)
Benefit obligation as of December 31 22,553 557 407 23,517 25,171

Funded status - net liability recognized in the
statement of financial position representing excess
of benefit obligation over fair value of plan assets  (3,244) (204) 1,172 (1,675) (5,613)
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The above net liability mainly represents the cumulative actuarial losses resulting from the difference
between the actual experience and the assumptions used in estimating the liability, which is
recognized by the Corporation in the equity immediately in the year, it arises, if material.

(b) Based on the actuarial valuations, the pension and medical benefit expenses for the year 2024
comprised the following:

SRPP SRMP RMSF Total Total
2024 2024 2024 2024 2023

Gross current service costs (1,283) (15) (87) (1,385) (1,334)
Cost on DBO (1,192) (32) (29) (1,253) (1,147)
Income on plan assets 894 17 98 1,009 924
Cost recognized in statement of profit or loss (1,581) (30) (18) (1,629) (1,557)
Effect of changes in demographic assumptions (87) (4) - (91) -
Effect of changes in financial assumptions 2,292 37 116 2,445 (370)
Effect of experience adjustments 1,638 94) 242 1,974 (183)
Return on plan assets greater than discount rate (464) (7) 83 (388) 426
Other adjustments 478 2 3 483 (498)
Gain recognized in statement of other

comprehensive income 3,857 122 444 4,423 (625)

(c) Principal assumptions used in the actuarial valuations dated 31 December 2024 and extended
as of end of the reporting period are as follows:

SRPP SRMP RMSF SRPP SRMP RMSF
2024 2024 2024 2023 2023 2023
Discount rate 5.66% 5.66% 5.66% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%
Rate of expected salary
increase 6.5%-4.5% 6.5%-4.5% 6.5%-4.5% 6.5%-4.5% 6.5% -4.5% 6.5% - 4.5%

The discount rate used in determining the benefit obligations is selected by reference to the long-
term rates on AA rated Corporate Bonds. Rate of expected salaries increase for 2024 and 2023 was
based on age i.e., 20-35 years — 6.5%, 35-50 years — 5.0% and above 50 years — 4.5%.

The sensitivity of defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions is as

follows:
2024: SRPP SRMP RMSF
+0.5% -0.5% +0.5% -0.5% +0.5% -0.5%
Discount rate (1,549) 1,734 (26) 28 (72) 87
Rate of expected salary increase 720 (681) - - - -
2023: SRPP SRMP RMSF
+0.5% -0.5% +0.5% -0.5% +0.5% -0.5%
Discount rate (1,712) 1,930 (32) 38 (88) (107)
Rate of expected salary increase 828 (779) 2 (2) - -
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The following table presents the plan assets by major category:

SRPP  SRMP RMSF Total Total
2024 2024 2024 2024 2023

Cash and cash equivalent and commodity

placements 7,272 335 2,006 9,613 10,966
Managed funds and instalment sales 5,641 - - 5,641 4,470
Investments in Sukuk 6,052 17 148 6,217 3,721
Land 239 - - 239 226
Other (net) 106 1 25 132 175
Plan assets 19,310 353 2,179 21,842 19,558

The following table summarizes the expected funding status for the next year:

SRPP SRMP RMSF Total
Present value of defined benefit obligation (24,325) (571) (693) (25,589)
Fair value of plan assets 20,914 356 2,665 23,935
Plan deficit (3,411) (215) 1,972 (1,654)

SRPP
The expected employer contribution for year ended 31 December 2024 is ID 1.01 million and expected
costs to be recognized in profit or loss is ID 1.15 million.

SRMP
The expected employer contribution for year ended 31 December 2024 is ID 3,000 and expected costs
to be recognized in profit or loss is ID 13,000.

RMSF
The expected employer contribution for year ended 31 December 2024 is ID 171,000 and expected
costs to be recognized in profit or loss is ID 24,000.

The expected maturity analysis is below:

SRPP SRMP RMSF

2024 2024 2024
Year 1 940 20 (5)
Year 2 628 23 (4)
Year 3 479 24 (4)
Year 4 478 24 (3)
Year 5 1,385 25 (2)
Next five years 7,538 139 (39)
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14. SHARE CAPITAL RELATED TO SHAREHOLDERS’ FUND

2024 2023
Authorized capital
1,000,000 shares (2023: 1,000,000) of ID 1,000 each 1,000,000 1,000,000
IsDB (“Special Account Resources Waqf Fund”)
Issued and subscribed capital
150,004 shares of ID 1,000 each:
50,000 shares of ID 1,000 each fully paid 50,000 50,000
50,004 shares of ID 1,000 each, of which ID 500 has been called 25,002 25,002
Member countries
147,160 shares (2023: 146,910) of ID 1,000 each, of which
ID 500 has been called 73,642 73,580
Less: Subscriptions receivable/adjustments (1,015) (1,015)
147,629 147,567

Uncalled issued capital subscriptions are subject to call by the Corporation as and when required to
meet its obligations. These may be refunded in whole or in part and amounts refunded shall form part
of callable capital obligation of shareholders.

Shareholders may withdraw from the Corporation after the expiry of a period of five years from the
date of their membership. In such an event, the Corporation shall arrange to repurchase shares of a
withdrawing shareholder at a price equal to the net book value of such shares on the date shareholder
ceases to be a member (adjusted for its share of liabilities). No member state has withdrawn since
inception and Management believes that the likelihood of any member state withdrawing their capital
is remote.

a) Subscriptions received during the year from Member countries are as follows:

15.

Shareholder 2024 2023
Republic of Togo 62 -
Azerbaijan - 125
62 125

b) Ageing of Subscriptions receivable
2024 2023
Overdue 1,015 1,015

GENERAL RESERVE

In accordance with Article 29 of Chapter IV of the Corporation’s Articles of Agreement, profits
accumulating in the Shareholders’ fund as well as any surplus accumulating in the Policyholders’ fund
shall be allocated to reserves, until such reserve equals five times the subscribed capital of the
Corporation.

After the reserves of the Corporation have reached this level, the Board of Governors will decide to

what extent the surplus accruing to the Policyholders’ fund and the net income accruing to the
Shareholders’ fund may be distributed or allocated to special reserves.
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16.

FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:
* Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or
* Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Corporation.

The fair value of an asset or liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Corporation uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1: qguoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2: valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

Level 3: valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable.

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to
initial recognition at fair value, grouped into levels 1 to 3 based on degree to which the fair value is
observable:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

2024

Investments in equity instruments designated as at

FVTOCI - Units in different funds - - 14,509
Financial assets mandatorily measured at FVTPL — Units

in a fund - - 317

2023

Investments in debt instruments classified as at FVTOCI -
Sukuk 3,707 - -
Investments in equity instruments designated as at

FVTOCI — Units in different funds - - 13,462
Financial assets mandatorily measured at FVTPL — Units

in a fund - - 508
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17.

There were no transfers between levels during the years ended December 31, 2024 and December
31, 2023. Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements is presented in note 7. b)  Fair values of
Level 1 investment is based on quoted price and Level 3 investments are based on net asset value
statements at year end of the respective entity.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk management lies at the heart of the Corporation’s operations. Insuring political and credit risk
requires a sound risk management infrastructure and an effective risk culture. The Corporation
considers the importance of risk management at all levels of its operations; from the Corporation’s
Board of Directors to the underwriting officer level. The Corporation manages its risk in line with the
guidelines and policies which have been approved by the Board of Executive Directors. The
Corporation shares the same Board of Executive Directors, Shari’ah Board and Audit Committee as
that of IsDB.

The nature of activities and management policies with respect to risk management are provided under
the various categories of risks faced by the Corporation:

Insurance Risk

As a multilateral institution, the Corporation provides two distinct services; credit insurance and
Investment risk insurance to its policyholders, as well as reinsurance services for both. Both of these
products require the Corporation to carry out buyer/project and country risk assessment in a way to
minimize the payment of claims as the Corporation’s net earnings would depend upon the incidence
of claims payment. The risk of paying out claims to its policyholders, though contingent in nature, is
the major risk which the Corporation faces. The management of insurance risk is done effectively by
employing various risk management techniques including risk diversification, risk transfer
(reinsurance) and monitoring of technical provisions. The Corporation closely monitors its claim and
recovery activities and provisions for outstanding claims. Cognizant of the importance of risk
diversification the Corporation sets exposure limits per country, per buyer and per transaction. The
Corporation has established well-functioning reinsurance programs which include treaty and
facultative reinsurance that are helpful in managing its portfolio risk profile.

Reinsurance risk

In order to minimize its financial exposure arising from large claims, whether in its overall Short-Term
portfolio, or in large Medium-Term transactions, and as per the industry practice, the Corporation
enters into exposure ceding agreements (Quota Share Treaty or Facultative Agreement) with
internationally operating and reputable reinsurance companies. Accordingly, the Corporation
carefully evaluates the financial strength of the reinsurers, and monitors their concentration risk in
geographic regions, economic sectors or in specific activities, in order to minimize its exposure to
significant losses which may be due to reinsurers’ insolvency.

Reinsurers are selected using stringent parameters and guidelines set by the management of the

Corporation, focusing mainly on the following criteria:

* Minimum acceptable credit rating by recognized rating agencies (S&P, Moody's, A.M. Best, or
Fitch)

* Financial strength, managerial and technical expertise, and historical performance

* Market reputation; and

* Existing or past business relationship/experience with the reinsurer.

Although the Corporation has reinsurance arrangements, it is not relieved of its direct obligations to
its policyholders and thus a credit exposure exists with respect to reinsurance ceded, to the extent
that any reinsurer is unable to meet its obligations assumed under such reinsurance arrangements.
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The ultimate liability arising from claims made under insurance contracts

Risk adjustment to liability for incurred claims is a key components of the Corporation’s ultimate
liability are estimated amounts of the liability for incurred claims as of the reporting date. These
reserves do not represent exact calculations but rather expectations based on historical claims’ trend
(frequency and severity), payments’ pattern, geo-political risks and other factors. In addition, the
external actuary runs independent valuation models after due reconciliation with financial statements
to validate reserve adequacy.

Process used to decide on assumptions

The pricing team follows the Corporation’s underwriting guidelines (approved by the Board of
Directors) in setting premiums taking into consideration credible claims experiences for both new
business and renewals or medical declarations.

Assumptions used in determining liability for incurred claims are based on the best estimate. Ultimate
claims are estimated using historical claim trends adjusted for inflation, seasonality, membership
growth and any other external or internal factors that may have impact on claim costs. Given the
nature of the business, the Corporation may still be exposed to risk of insufficiency of liability for
incurred claims for which actual claim cost may turn out to be higher than the initial estimated
ultimate claims.

The estimation of liability for incurred claims is generally subject to a greater degree of uncertainty
than the estimation of the outstanding claims which are received but not yet settled with the
providers. For the case of outstanding claims, the Corporation uses payment information of settled
batches with providers to estimate the expected settlement amounts of recently submitted batches,
while it uses mainly pre-authorization data to estimate incurred but not reported claims. The
Corporation seeks to avoid inadequate reserve levels by adopting established processes in
determining liability for incurred claims and using updated information from both claims received and
pre-authorization data.

The insurance contract liabilities have been determined as such that the total liability (liability for
remaining coverage and liability for incurred claims) would be sufficient to service the future expected
claims and expenses likely to occur on the unexpired policies. The expected future liability is
determined using the Corporation’s loss ratio adjusted for seasonality and portfolio mix for the
remaining unearned period.

Sensitivity analysis

The Corporation believes that the liabilities for incurred claims under insurance contracts outstanding
at year-end are adequate. However, these amounts are not certain and actual payments may differ
from the liabilities provided in the financial statements. The insurance liabilities are sensitive to the
various assumptions. It has not been possible to quantify the sensitivity of specific variable such as
legislative changes or uncertainty in the estimation process.

An assumed 5% change in the claims’ ratio, net of reinsurance, would impact on liabilities and net
profit as follows:

Change in Impact on Impact on net
assumption liabilities profit
December 31, 2024
Claim ratio +5% 936 (936)
Claim ratio -5% (936) 936
December 31, 2023
Claim ratio +5% 610 (610)
Claim ratio -5% (610) 610
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Credit risk

Credit risk is a risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge its obligation and cause
the other party to incur a financial loss.

For all classes of financial assets held by the Corporation, other than those relating to reinsurance
contracts as described in reinsurance risk above, the maximum credit risk exposure to the Corporation
is the carrying value as disclosed in the financial statements at the statement of financial position
date.

Reinsurance is placed with counterparties that have a good credit rating and concentration of risk is
avoided by following policy guidelines in respect of counterparties’ limits that are set each year by the
Board of Directors and are subject to regular reviews. At each reporting date, management performs
an assessment of creditworthiness of reinsurers and updates the reinsurance purchase strategy,
ascertaining suitable allowances for impairment.

The Corporation seeks to limit its credit risk with respect to customers by following its credit control
policy and monitoring outstanding receivables on an on-going basis in order to reduce the
Corporation’s exposure to bad debts. Management estimates specific credit loss provision on a case
by case basis. In addition to specific provisions, the Corporation also makes an additional provision
against expected premium receipts, estimated on a collective basis, based on the IFRS 9 expected
credit loss method. Further, the Corporation’s investment portfolio is primarily managed by IsDB and
therefore, it is of the opinion that no credit loss is likely to occur.

The table below shows the maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the statement of
financial position:

December 31, December 31,

2024 2023

Cash and cash equivalents 38,181 21,800
Investments in debt instruments held at FVOCI — cost - 3,727
Investment carried at amortized cost 311,244 251,313
349,425 276,840

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in
market prices.

The Corporation is exposed to limited market risk due to majority of its investments being
denominated in its functional currency and on a held-to-maturity basis. While the Corporation does
not trade in equity instruments or speculate in foreign currencies or derivatives, a limited amount of
its investments in Sukuk are and measured at fair value.

2024 2023
+5% -5% +5% -5%

Impact on statement of profit or loss of
change in fair value of investments at
FVTPL 16 (16) 25 (25)
Impact on  statement of other
comprehensive income of change in fair
value of investments at FVOCI 725 (725) 858 (858)
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Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign
exchange rates.

With the change of functional currency in October 2019 to United States Dollars (USD), the
Corporation’s investment portfolio of the Shareholders fund is entirely held in US Dollars. The
Corporation continues to offer Euro denominated insurance policies and has a policy to minimize the
net open position in Euro through undertaking spot conversion transactions to align Euro insurance
assets and liabilities.

The carrying amounts of the Corporation’s foreign currency denominated monetary assets and
monetary liabilities at the reporting date are as follows:

2024 2023

Euro 3,146 3,281

The 5% movement in the exchange rate for the following currencies against the US Dollar functional
currency would impact the statement of income as follows:

2024 2023
+5% -5% +5% -5%
Euro (150) 166 (129) 142

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Corporation will not be able to meet its commitments associated with
financial liabilities when they fall due.

Liquidity requirements are monitored on a monthly basis and management ensures that sufficient
liquid funds are available to meet any commitments as they arise.

The following table summarizes the maturities of the Corporation’s undiscounted financial assets and
financial liabilities at the end of:

No contractual Within 3 3-12

2024 maturity months  months 1-5 years Total
Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents - 38,181 - - 38,181
Investment carried at amortized

cost - 24,528 121,550 165,167 311,244
Investments at fair value 14,826 - - - 14,826
Due from related parties - 193 - - 193
Total assets 14,826 62,902 121,550 165,167 364,444

No contractual Within 3 3-12

2024 maturity months months 1-5 years Total
Financial liabilities
Due to related parties - 824 - - 824
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No contractual Within 3 3-12

2023 maturity months  months 1-5 years Total
Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents - 21,800 - - 21,800
Investment carried at amortized

cost - - 119,978 131,335 251,313
Investments at fair value 13,970 - 3,707 - 17,677
Due from related parties - 199 - - 199
Total assets 13,970 21,999 123,685 131,335 290,989

No contractual Within 3 3-12

2023 maturity months  months 1-5 years Total
Financial liabilities
Due to related parties - 514 - - 514

Mark-up risk

Mark-up risk arises from the possibility that changes in mark-up rates will affect the value of the
financial instruments. The Corporation is exposed to mark-up risk on its investments in all Murabaha
placements and investments in Sukuk. In respect of the financial assets, the Corporation’s returns are
based on a benchmark and hence vary according to the market conditions.

The sensitivity analysis has been determined based on the exposure to mark-up rates at the reporting
date and the stipulated change taking place at the beginning of the financial year and held constant
throughout the reporting period. A 50 basis point change is used when reporting mark-up rate risk
internally to key management personnel and represents management’s assessment of the possible
change in mark-up rates.

The 50 basis point movement in the average mark-up rate on investments on investments held at
amortised cost the statement of profit or loss is as follows:

2024 2023
+0.5% -0.5% +0.5% -0.5%
Investments held at amortised cost 1,406 (1,406) 1,015 (1,015)

Operational risk

The operational risk is defined as the risk of loss faced by a financial institution arising from failed
processes, people and/or systems.

The Corporation has a full-fledged Risk Management function in place, which regularly monitors all
operational risk aspects related to insurance as well as investment operations. In addition, it
coordinates with IsDB Risk Management Department (RMD) to ensure presence of an effective
internal control system through which it attempts to manage its operational risk. Furthermore, the
Corporation has an internal audit function that audits internal controls and recommends
improvements under a risk-based internal audit approach and also coordinates with IsDB Internal
Audit Department (‘IAD’).

The Corporation’s objective is to manage operational risk so as to balance limiting of financial losses
and damage to its reputation with achieving its investment objective of generating returns for
investors. The primary responsibility for the development and implementation of controls over
operational risk rests with the Board of Directors. This responsibility encompasses the controls in the
following areas:
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- Requirements for appropriate segregation of duties between various functions, roles and
responsibilities;

- Requirements for the reconciliation and monitoring of transactions;

- Compliance with regulatory and other legal requirements;

- Documentation of controls and procedures;

- Requirements for the periodic assessment of operational risks, and the adequacy of controls and
procedures to address those risks;

- Ethical and business standards; and

- Risk mitigation policies and procedures.

The Corporation continues to follow IsDB Group ‘Best Practices and Customer Due Diligence
Standards’ and internal operational regulations when dealing with clients.

Shari'ah non-compliance risk (SNCR)

The Corporation defines Shari’ah non-compliance risk as the risk of losses resulting from non-
adherence to Shari’ah rules and principles as determined by the IDB Group Shari’ah Board. The
Corporation attaches value in safeguarding its operations from Shari'ah non-compliance risk (SNCR).
Shari'ah compliance forms an integral part of Corporation's purpose in line with its Articles of
Agreement. Consequently, the Corporation effectively manage SNCRs through leveraging on the IsDB
Group wide robust framework of procedures and policies. The business or risk-taking unit, as the 1st
line of defence, embeds a culture of Shari'ah compliance, while the IsDB Group Shari'ah Compliance
function serves as the 2nd line of defence to strategically manage and monitor SNCRs pre-execution
of transactions/operations. The IsDB Group Internal Shari'ah Audit function provides independent
reasonable assurance as the 3rd line of defence post-execution of transactions/operations adopting
a Risk-based Internal Shari'ah Audit (RBISA) methodology.

Geographical risk

The following table summarizes the gross insurance exposure country wise:

Country 2024 2023
Cote d'lvoire 888,257 586,586
Turkey 730,394 377,106
Senegal 658,342 725,208
Egypt 518,050 309,586
Uzbekistan 254,407 231,886
Uganda 212,152 206,070
Togo 189,649 240
Bangladesh 89,780 138,044
Nigeria 85,224 7,187
Cameroon 78,647 89,246
Maldives 78,271 46,289
Saudi Arabia 70,459 69,050
Luxembourg 55,381 53,832
Bahrain 48,721 18,017
Turkmenistan 48,308 46,956
Other 449,829 674,753
Gross exposure 4,455,871 3,580,056
Ceded exposure to Reinsurers (3,446,882) (2,572,896)
Net exposure 1,008,989 1,007,160
Net exposure/total equity (times) 4.15 4,72
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18.

19.

20.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
The capital structure consists of equity of the Corporation (comprising issued capital and reserve).

As the Corporation is a multilateral organization, the capital is not subject to external regulations.
However, the Corporation intends to follow best industry practices in terms of prudent capital
management policies. In this regard, the Corporation will be following Articles of Agreement. In
accordance with the Article 21, the Corporation may not exceed 800% of its unimpaired subscribed
capital and its reserves, plus such portion of its reinsurance cover as the Board of Directors may
determine.

ZAKAT AND TAX TREATMENT

Since the Corporation is part of Baitul Mal (public money), it is not subject to Zakat or tax.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These financial statements were authorized for issue in accordance with a resolution of the
Corporation’s Board of Directors on March 17, 2025.
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December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Policyholders’ Shareholders' Policyholders' Shareholders'

Fund Fund Total Fund Fund Total
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 16,831 21,350 38,181 19,362 2,438 21,800
Investment carried at amortized cost 90,986 220,258 311,244 39,130 212,183 251,313
Investment carried at fair value - 14,826 14,826 - 17,677 17,677
Reinsurance contract asset 101,895 - 101,895 81,470 - 81,470
Advances, prepaid expenses and other assets 2,718 2,974 5,692 3,311 2,019 5,330
Due from related parties 193 - 193 199 - 199
Property and equipment 1,952 - 1,952 1,795 - 1,795
TOTAL ASSETS 214,575 259,408 473,983 145,267 234,317 379,584
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Insurance contract liabilities 212,113 - 212,113 149,907 - 149,907
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 13,753 2,422 16,175 8,147 1,875 10,022
Due to related parties 824 - 824 514 - 514
Employee benefits liabilities 1,675 - 1,675 5,613 - 5,613
Qard (Loan) to Policyholders Fund - 1,659 1,659 - (9,445) (9,445)
Qard from Shareholders’ fund (1,659) - (1,659) 9,445 - 9,445
TOTAL LIABILITIES 226,706 4,081 230,787 173,626 (7,570) 166,056
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EQUITY

Share capital

Reserves

Fair value reserve

Accumulated deficit

Actuarial losses on employee benefits
Foreign exchange reserve

TOTAL EQUITY

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Policyholders’”  Shareholders' Policyholders' Shareholders'
Fund Fund Total Fund Fund Total
- 147,629 147,629 - 147,567 147,567
- 96,548 96,548 - 89,694 89,694
- (966) (966) - (1,055) (1,055)
(13,925) - (13,925) (25,796) - (25,796)
3,631 - 3,631 (792) - (792)
(1,837) 12,116 10,279 (1,085) 4,995 3,910
(12,131) 255,327 243,196 (27,673 ) 241,201 213,528
214,575 259,408 473,983 145,953 233,631 379,584

TOAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
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December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Policyholders' Shareholders' Policyholders' Shareholders'

Fund Fund Total Fund Fund Total
Insurance revenue 78,270 - 78,270 57,064 - 57,064
Insurance service expenses (43,466) - (43,466) (9,628) - (9,628)
Net expenses from reinsurance contracts held (22,754) - (22,754) (36,130) - (36,130)
Insurance service result 12,050 - 12,050 11,306 - 11,306
Investment income on investment at amortised
cost 3,267 10,045 13,312 1,712 9,847 11,559
Investment income on investment at fair value - 673 673 - 634 634
Allowance for expected credit losses (1) (1,269) (1,270) 142 22 164
Net investment income 3,266 9,449 12,715 1,854 10,503 12,357
Finance income/(expenses) from insurance
contracts issued 4,902 - 4,902 (2,378) - (2,378)
Finance income/(expenses) from reinsurance
contracts held (2,483) - (2,483) 1,357 - 1,357
Net insurance finance income/(expenses) 2,419 - 2,419 (1,021) - (1,021)
Net insurance and investment result 17,735 9,449 27,184 12,139 10,503 22,642
Investment management fees - (432) (432) - (612) (612)
Other operating expenses (2,801) (2,156) (4,957) (3,283) (1,934) (5,217)
(Loss)/income on foreign exchange translation (3,063) (7) (3,070) 1,110 1 1,111
NET CORPORATE GAIN 11,871 6,854 18,725 9,966 7,958 17,924
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December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Shareholder
Policyholders’ s' Policyholders' Shareholders'

Fund Fund Total Fund Fund Total
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 21,950 27,843 49,793 25,978 3,270 29,248
Investment carried at amortized cost 118,657 287,246 405,903 52,500 284,678 337,178
Investment carried at fair value - 19,336 19,336 - 23,716 23,716
Reinsurance contract asset 132,884 - 132,884 109,306 - 109,306
Advances, prepaid expenses and other assets 3,545 3,878 7,423 4,442 2,709 7,151
Due from related parties 252 - 252 267 - 267
Property and equipment 2,667 2,667 2,447 - 2,447
TOTAL ASSETS 279,955 338,303 618,258 194,940 314,373 509,313
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Insurance contract liabilities 276,624 - 276,624 201,127 - 201,127
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 17,937 3,158 21,095 10,932 2,543 13,475
Due to related parties 1,075 - 1,075 689 - 689
Employee benefits liabilities 2,184 - 2,184 7,531 - 7,531
Qard (Loan) to Policyholders Fund - 2,533 2,533 - (11,625) (11,625)
Qard from Shareholders’ fund (2,533) - (2,533) 11,625 11,625
TOTAL LIABILITIES 295,287 5,691 300,978 231,904 (9,082) 222,822
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION BY FUND IN FUNCTIONAL CURRENCY (USD)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 (30 JUMAD AL THANI 1446H)

EQUITY

Share capital

Reserves

Fair value reserve

Accumulated deficit

Actuarial losses on employee benefits

TOTAL EQUITY
TOAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Policyholders’”  Shareholders' Policyholders' Shareholders'

Fund Fund Total Fund Fund Total
- 201,261 201,261 - 201,176 201,176
- 132,724 132,724 - 123,535 123,535

- (1,373) (1,373) - (1,256) (1,256)

(19,509) - (19,509) (35,266) - (35,266)

4,177 - 4,177 (1,698) - (1,698)
(15,332) 332,612 317,280 (36,964) 323,455 286,491
279,955 338,303 618,258 194,940 314,373 509,313
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December 31, 2024

December 31, 2023

Policyholders' Shareholders' Policyholders' Shareholders'

Fund Fund Total Fund Fund Total
Insurance revenue 103,891 - 103,891 76,109 - 76,109
Insurance service expenses (57,695) - (57,695) (12,842) - (12,842)
Net expenses from reinsurance contracts held (30,202) - (30,202) (48,188) - (48,188)
Insurance service result 15,994 - 15,994 15,079 - 15,079
Investment income on investment at amortised
cost 4,337 13,333 17,670 2,284 13,134 15,418
Investment income on investment at fair value - 893 893 - 845 845
Allowance for expected credit losses (1) (1,685) (1,686) 189 30 219
Net investment income 4,336 12,541 16,877 2,473 14,009 16,482
Finance income/(expenses) from insurance 6,507 - 6,507
contracts issued (3,171) - (3,171)
Finance income/(expenses) from reinsurance
contracts held (3,296 ) - (3,296) 1,810 - 1,810
Net insurance finance income/(expenses) 3,211 - 3,211 (1,361) - (1,361 )
Net insurance and investment result 23,541 12,541 36,082 16,191 14,009 30,200
Investment management fees - (574) (574) - (816) (816)
Other operating expenses (3,719) (2,860) (6,579) (4,381) (2,581) (6,962)
(Loss)/income on foreign exchange translation (4,065) (9) (4,074) 1,481 2 1,483
NET CORPORATE GAIN 15,757 9,098 24,855 13,291 10,614 23,905
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